
Wales Pension Partnership Joint 
Governance Committee,
Democratic Services Unit, 
Chief Executive’s Department,
Carmarthenshire County Council,
County Hall, 
Carmarthen SA31 1JP.

THURSDAY, 9 JULY 2020

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP JOINT 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE 
WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
WHICH WILL BE HELD AT 10.00 AM, ON FRIDAY, 17TH JULY, 2020 FOR 
THE TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED 
AGENDA

Wendy Walters

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

PLEASE NOTE: THIS MEETING WILL BE FILMED FOR LIVE OR SUBSEQUENT BROADCAST.  
THE IMAGES AND SOUND RECORDING MAY ALSO BE USED FOR TRAINING PURPOSES..

Democratic Officer: Jessica Laimann
Telephone (direct line): 01267 224178
E-Mail: JMLaimann@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Webcast Link https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-

democracy/committees-meetings/virtual-council-
meetings/#.XwcRm0F7nIV 

Document Pack

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-meetings/virtual-council-meetings/#.XwcRm0F7nIV
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-meetings/virtual-council-meetings/#.XwcRm0F7nIV
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-meetings/virtual-council-meetings/#.XwcRm0F7nIV


WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP 
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

8 MEMBERS
(1 Member from each Constituent Authority)

CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
COUNCILLOR ELWYN WILLIAMS 

CITY & COUNTY OF SWANSEA
COUNCILLOR CLIVE LLOYD

CITY OF CARDIFF
COUNCILLOR CHRISTOPHER WEAVER

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
COUNCILLOR AARON SHOTTON

GWYNEDD COUNTY COUNCIL
 COUNCILLOR JOHN PUGHE ROBERTS

POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL
 COUNCILLOR PETER LEWIS

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
 COUNCILLOR MARK NORRIS

TORFAEN COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 COUNCILLOR GLYN CARON



A G E N D A  

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR OF THE JOINT GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE FOR THE FORTHCOMING CALENDAR YEAR 

2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR OF THE JOINT GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE FOR THE FORTHCOMING CALENDAR YEAR 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

5. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 12TH 
MARCH 2020 

5 - 10

6. WPP 2019/20 ANNUAL RETURN 11 - 48

7. HOST AUTHORITY UPDATE 49 - 72

8. WPP CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND PROCEDURE POLICY 73 - 86

9. WPP CLIMATE RISK POLICY 87 - 94

10. WPP RISK POLICY & RISK REGISTER 95 - 116

11. OPERATOR UPDATE 117 - 128

12. PERFORMANCE REPORTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 129 - 178



This page is intentionally left blank



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP JOINT GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE

Thursday, 12 March 2020

PRESENT: Councillor Cllr. P. Lewis (Chair)

Councillors: 
H. Bateman, G. Caron, C. Lloyd, M. Norris, C. Weaver, J. Pughe Roberts and 
D.E. Williams

The following Officers were in attendance:
C. Moore, Joint Committee Section 151 Officer (CCC)
L.R. Jones, Joint Committee Monitoring Officer (CCC)
N. Aurelius, Assistant Chief Executive - Resources (TCC)
J. Dong, Chief Treasury & Technical Officer (C&CS)
D. Edwards, Head of Finance (GCC)
C. Hurst, Pension Fund Manager (PCC)
D. Fielder, Deputy Head of Pensions (FCC)
C. Lee, Corporate Director of Resources (CoC)
A. Parnell, Treasury & Pension Investments Manager (CCC)
Y. Keitch, Principal Accountant (RCT)
T. Williams, Senior Financial Services Officer (CCC)
J. Laimann, Assistant Democratic Services Officer (CCC)

Also present as observers:
Cllr. P. Jenkins, Vice-Chair of the Pensions Committee (GCC)
J. Thomas, Head of Financial Services (PCC)
K. Cobb, Senior Accountant (C&CS)
G. Russell. Head of Pensions (TCC)
A. Bull, Pensions Investment Manager (TCC)

Also present:
Eamonn Gough, Link Fund Solutions 
Karl Midl, Link Fund Solutions 
Sasha Mandich, Russell Investments
John Wright, Hymans Robertson

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority, Plas y Ffynnon, Brecon, 11.00 am - 12.15 pm

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

G. Caron Member of Greater Gwent Pension Fund;
 Wife is deferred member of Greater Gwent Pension 

Fund;

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Son-in-law is member of Greater Gwent Pension Fund
P. Lewis Member of Powys Pension Fund;
C. Lloyd Member of City and County of Swansea Pension Fund;

Father is member of City and County of Swansea 
Pension Fund

M. Norris Member of Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund;
J. Pugh Roberts Member of Gwynedd Pension Fund;
E. Williams Member of Dyfed Pension Fund

(Note: There is an exemption within the Code of Conduct for Members, which 
allows a member who has been appointed or nominated by their authority to a 
relevant body to declare that interest but remain and participate in the meeting).

3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
JOINT COMMITTEE HELD ON 9 DECEMBER 2019

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Joint Governance Committee meeting 
held on 9 December 2019 be signed as a correct record.

4. WAO AUDIT PLAN

The Joint Governance Committee (JGC) welcomed to the meeting Mr Jason 
Garcia from the Wales Audit Office (WAO), who presented the Audit Plan for 
2019/20. He advised that this was the first year the Wales Pension Partnership 
(WPP) would be producing full financial statements as last year’s account had 
been below the £2.5m threshold and therefore only required the completion of an 
annual return. He advised further that the Audit Plan provided an overview of 
WAO’s duties, audit risks, estimated audit fee, audit team and timetable. 
Regarding the timetable. WAO was planning to give an opinion on the WPP’s 
financial statements by 31 July 2020 and a report would be brought to the 18 June 
2020 JGC for approval. With regard to the Audit fee, the JGC was advised that 
only an estimate could be provided at this point and the total fee comprised of two 
elements: work carried out to undertake the audit of the financial statements 
themselves and work carried out in order to provide assurance to the individual 
pension fund auditors. Mr Garcia confirmed that Lucy Herman had been appointed 
as Audit Lead Senior Auditor.

RESOLVED that the Audit Plan 2019/20 be approved.

5. HOST AUTHORITY UPDATE

Mr Parnell advised the Committee that work on several proposals and plans had 
been completed over the last few months and the following documents would be 
brought to today’s meeting for approval:

 WPP Business Plan
 Proposal for the Emerging Markets Equity Sub-Fund structure
 Voting and Engagement Service Provider tender exercise

With regard to next steps and priorities, Mr Parnell advised that work is 
progressing well with the private markets sub-group and a progress update would 

Page 6



be provided by Link and Russell later at the meeting. Further next steps and 
priorities included the development of a WPP climate risk policy and a WPP voting 
policy, a tender exercise for appointing a legal advisor off the National Framework, 
and the completion of the 2019/20 end of year closure of accounts. An updated 
workplan had been attached.

With regard to other key areas, the JGC was advised that Hymans Robertson had 
been appointed as the WPP’s Oversight Advisor and the Governance Matrix, 
Communications Plan and Training Plan were now available on the WPP website. 

With regard to Scheme Member Representation, Mr Moore advised the committee 
that a response letter outlining the WPP’s representation and engagement 
arrangements had been sent to the Scheme Advisory Board. The letter had been 
circulated to all Pension Committee chairs and it had been suggested that options 
for widening representation on JGC meetings should be explored further. The JGC 
was advised that the JGC’s governance arrangements and the Inter-Authority 
Agreement would need to be considered in this process and any changes to the 
Inter-Authority Agreement would have to be agreed by all constituent authorities.

In response to a query, the JGC was advised that a report on the subject of 
scheme member representation and potential legal implications would be provided 
at the next meeting.

RESOLVED that the host authority update be received.

6. WPP TRAINING PLAN 2020/21

The JGC considered the WPP Training Plan for 2020/21. Members were advised 
that the training plan had been developed on the basis of the responses received 
to a training requirements questionnaire that had been circulated to all JGC and 
Officer Working Group (OWG) members. The training had been devised to 
complement the training provisions of constituent authorities. It was primarily 
aimed at the training needs of the JGC and OWG however it could be extended to 
members of pension committees and boards at the constituent authorities’ 
discretion. 

In response to a query, members were advised that the training sessions would be 
scheduled together with formal JGC meetings where possible. This would be 
discussed further at the OWG meetings.

RESOLVED that the WPP Training Plan 2020/21 be approved.

7. WPP BUSINESS PLAN

The JGC considered the WPP Business Plan. The JGC was advised that the 
purpose of the Business Plan was to explain the background and governance 
structure of the WPP, outline priorities and objectives, introduce the WPP’s 
policies and plans, outline the financial budget and summarise the WPP’s 
Investment and Performance Objectives. 

Page 7



The meeting was advised that, following approval by the JGC, the Business Plan 
would be sent to all Constituent Authorities for approval in accordance with 
Section 6 of the Inter-Authority Agreement. 

With regard to the financial budget, members were advised that investment 
manager fees were subject to changes due to moving market values and any 
variances would be explained going forward.

In response to a query, members were advised that the completion of a risk 
register would be included in the workplan.

RESOLVED that the WPP Business Plan be approved.

8. LINK/RUSSELL UPDATE

The JGC received a presentation from Link and Russell on the progress of the 
WPP with regard to current fund holdings, fund launch progress and the Link/WPP 
Engagement Protocol.

With regard to Fixed Income (Tranche 3), members were advised that FCA 
approval had been received on 10 March 2020 and a transition plan was being 
developed for launch dates on 20 and 23 April 2020. 

With regard to Emerging Markets (Tranche 4), the JGC was advised that the 
timeframe for approval and set-up was expected to be longer than previous sub-
funds with the earliest possible launch date being December 2020.

Members were further advised that, given concerns over Covid-19, Link and 
Russell were putting in place contingency measures to ensure they could continue 
to operate in case of lockdown of offices and travel bans.

In response to a query on the launch of the Fixed Income sub-funds, the JGC was 
advised that fund performance was monitored daily to ensure market conditions 
were suitable for launching on the 20 and 23 April 2020. Link/Russell were working 
closely with the Host Authority and Members could be provided with regular 
updates. 

RESOLVED that the presentation be received.

9. PERFORMANCE REPORTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

The JGC received a presentation on the performance reports for the Global 
Growth Fund, the Global Opportunities Fund, and the UK Opportunities Fund as at 
31 December 2019. The Committee was advised that the three funds total just 
under £5.3bn and the funds outperformed their benchmarks by 0.64%, 1.42% and 
3.90% (ITD, gross of fees) respectively.

RESOLVED that the performance reports for the Global Growth Fund, the 
Global Opportunities Fund, and the UK Opportunities Fund as at 31 
December 2019 be noted.

Page 8



10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED, pursuant to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the 
Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007, 
that the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items as the reports contained exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

11. WPP VOTING AND ENGAGEMENT SERVICE PROVIDER

Following the application of the public interest test it was RESOLVED, 
pursuant to the Act referred to in Minute 10 above, to consider this matter in 
private, with the public excluded from the meeting, as disclosure would be 
likely to cause financial harm to the WPP by prejudicing ongoing and future 
negotiations. 

The JGC considered a report on the WPP Voting and Engagement Service 
Provider.

RESOLVED to approve the appointment of bidder 5 as the Wales Pensions 
Partnership Voting and Engagement Service Provider, subject to the 
completion of the standstill period and the finalisation of the Voting and 
Engagement Service Provider Contract.

12. EMERGING MARKETS SUB-FUNDS

Following the application of the public interest test it was RESOLVED, 
pursuant to the Act referred to in Minute 10 above, to consider this matter in 
private, with the public excluded from the meeting, as disclosure would be 
likely to cause financial harm to the WPP by prejudicing ongoing and future 
negotiations.

The JGC considered a report on the Emerging Markets Equity Sub-Fund structure.

RESOLVED that the proposed Emerging Markets Equity Sub-Fund structure 
be approved.

________________________ __________________
CHAIR DATE

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

SUBJECT

ANNUAL RETURN / AUDIT 2019/20

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

 To receive the letter from Audit Wales re the WPP 2019/20 Annual 
Return

 To approve the Audited Annual Return for 2019/20
 To note the Unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 

REASONS: 

An Annual Return is required to be completed for 2019/20. 

The Accounting Statements and Annual Governance Statement sections of the 
Annual Return have been prepared by the Host Authority and Carmarthenshire 
County Council’s Internal Audit Department have carried out an Internal Audit 
Review. The Annual return has been audited by Audit Wales and the letter from 
Audit Wales is attached. 
The JGC is required to approve the Annual Return.  

The Host Authority has also produced a Statement of Accounts for the Wales 
Pension Partnership for 2019/20. This is for information purposes only and does 
not require to be audited.

Report Author:
Chris Moore

Designation:
Director of Corporate Services

Carmarthenshire County 
Council

Tel No. 01267 224160 

E. Mail: 
CMoore@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

ANNUAL RETURN / AUDIT 2019/20

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

For joint committees with income and expenditure below £2.5 million, the 
requirement is that accounts are prepared in the form of an annual return. The 
Joint Governance Costs of the Wales Pension Partnership for 2019/20 are 
£299k.

The Annual Report is split into the following sections:
1. Accounting Statement 2019/20 – including a statement of income and 

expenditure / receipts and payments and a statement of balances.
2. Annual Governance Statement
3. Committee approval and certification
4. Auditor General for Wales’ Audit Certificate and report
5. Annual Internal Audit report

Section 1 & 2 above have been completed by the Host Authority in accordance 
with proper practices as set out in the Practitioners Guide. Section 5 has been 
completed by the Host Authority’s Internal Audit Department. The Annual 
Return has been audited by Audit Wales.

The Host Authority has also prepared a Statement of Accounts for the Wales 
Pension Partnership for 2019/20. The Statement is not a statutory requirement 
and will not be audited. It has been prepared for information purposes only, to 
support the information included in the Annual Report.   

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Page 12



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES YES NONE NONE

Legal
Compliance with the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Public Audit 
(Wales) Act 2004.

Finance
The net cost of the Wales Pension Partnership activities was £299k which has been recharged 
to the 8 Welsh Pension Funds

Page 13



CONSULTATIONS
Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Accounts and Audit (Wales) 
Regulations 2014

Corporate Services Department, 
County Hall, Carmarthen.

Page 14



Page 1 of 2

Mr Chris Moore 
Director of Corporate Services 
Carmarthenshire County Council County Hall
Carmarthen 
SA31 1JP 

Reference: WPP-19/20
Date issued: 06/07/20

Dear Chris,

Wales Pension Partnership Joint Committee 2019-20 Annual Return

In accordance with the requirements of Section 12 and Section 14 of the Public 
Audit (Wales) Act 2004 I am giving my report on the Wales Pension Partnership 
joint committee annual return for the year ended 31 March 2020.
I have undertaken our work in accordance with the specified procedures issued by 
the Auditor General for Wales. In summary these procedures require us to 
consider whether the annual statement of accounts: 
 has been prepared on a reasonable basis (for example, the figures agree to the 

underlying records upon which they have been prepared and are consistent 
with transactions recorded in the statutory accounts of the constituent local 
authorities for the same reporting period); and 

 casts correctly.
Audit report on the annual statement of accounts relating to Wales Pension 
Partnership joint committee for the period ending 31 March 2020: 
Subject to the following two actions being completed satisfactorily we will be able 
to certify the joint committee’s annual return and issue our notice of completion of 
the audit.

24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan
Cardiff / Caerdydd

CF11 9LJ
Tel / Ffôn: 029 2032 0500

Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600
Textphone / Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660

info@audit.wales / post@archwilio.cymru
www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru

Page 15

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


Page 2 of 2

 Approval of the 2019-20 statement of accounts by the joint committee 
which is due to be done at its meeting on 17th July 2020.

 On the 1 September 2020, local government electors may exercise their 
rights under sections 30 and 31 of Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 to 
question the Auditor General about or make objections to the joint 
committee’s accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020.  Should any 
issues arise from this process we would need to consider these before 
being able to certify the joint committee’s annual return.

Once these actions are completed to our satisfaction, we will be able to confirm 
the following:
“On the basis of our review and in our opinion, the information contained in the 
Annual Return is in accordance with proper practices and no matters have come 
to our attention giving cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory 
requirements have not been met.”
Other matters
We have no other matters we need to bring to your attention.
Yours sincerely

Ann Marie Harkin
for and on behalf of Adrian Crompton, Auditor General for Wales 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

SUBJECT

HOST AUTHORITY UPDATE

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To receive an update from the host authority

REASONS: 

The host authority to provide a progress update in relation to the following key 
areas:

 Governance
 Ongoing establishment
 Operator services
 Communications and reporting
 Training and meetings
 Resources, budget and fees

Report Author:
Chris Moore

Designation:
Director of Corporate Services

Carmarthenshire County 
Council

Tel No. 01267 224160 

E. Mail: 
CMoore@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

HOST AUTHORITY UPDATE 

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

Work has continued to be developed in a number of key areas, including:
 Completing the 2019/20-year end closure of accounts
 Developing a Conflict of Interest and Climate Risk Policy
 Developing a Risk Policy and Risk Register 
 Work has continued with the next tranches of sub funds, more information 

regarding these will be provided in the Operator update

Other key areas:
 Business Plan – in the process of being approved by the Constituent Authorities.
 Robeco – Initial meetings have been held with Robeco and work is ongoing on 

the Engagement side including the development of a portal. The Voting Policy is 
likely to be developed later in the year. Virtual training sessions are in the 
process of being arranged for all Constituent Authorities.

 Training Plan – we are aiming to fulfil the approved 2020/21 training plan with 
virtual training events being held for the foreseeable future. In order to facilitate 
this new way of delivering training, the order of the training topics may slightly 
change from the original plan. One virtual training session was successfully 
completed on 18 June 2020. 

 Legal Advisor Contract – due to COVID 19 the tendering process was put on 
hold, the existing contract has been extended to 31 December 2020 and the 
procurement exercise will re-commence shortly.

 Stock Lending – Northern Trust have provided a Global Securities Lending 
Review Report for the period 19 March 2020 to 30 April 2020. Full report 
attached.

 The Website continues to be updated with relevant news and publications.

Page 50



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

YES NONE NONE NONE NONE

Policy
Policy and procedure documents will be formal documents for the Wales Pension Partnership.

Page 51



CONSULTATIONS

Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Page 52



1northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrustnortherntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

Global Securities 
Lending
Review

NORTHERN TRUST

Prepared for  Link Fund Solutions : Wales Pension Partnership

Presented 21st May 2020 : Performance Data Range 19th March to 30th April 2020

Neil Round

Senior Relationship Manager

EMEA, Securities Lending 

Tel: +44 207 982 2030

E-mail: ndr3@ntrs.com

Dan Armstrong

Senior Account Manager

EMEA, Securities Lending 

Tel: +44 207 982 4341

E-mail: da179@ntrs.com

P
age 53



2northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

SECURITIES LENDING LINK FUND SOLUTIONS (WALES) RELATIONSHIP TIMELINE

FX

Summary of Lending Programme

• Commenced lending March 2020

• LF WALES  have a bespoke non-cash collateral account.

• GBP £71,807 in 2020 YTD net revenue earnings  

• Total Gross Revenue in 2020 has been GBP £84,475

• Fee Split : 85/15 with WALES receiving 85% of the total revenue and Northern Trust receiving 15%

• All costs for running the securities lending programme are taken from Northern Trust’s share of the fee split

• All loans are collateralised at 102/105% (subject to de minimis) depending on the currency of the loans/collateral

• Agent shall only lend Securities to Borrowers with a short-term rating at the time the loan is made of no lower than A1/P1

• A maximum on loan of 25% of total AUM at any one time; notwithstanding changes to prices and lendable assets

• A minimum of 5% of the nominal quantity of each individual equity holding shall not be available for Loan at any one time

March 2020

Securities Lending Begins – Activation 

of Global Growth Fund and Global 

Opportunities Equity Fund

April 2020

Activation of UK 

Opportunities Equity Fund

P
age 54



3northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

ACCOUNT PERFORMANCE 

• The Gross Basis point return for the period was 2.0 bps

• The PPGOEF SW Mitchell Fund has contributed the majority of the revenue ( 44%)

• Primary demand has been seen directional trading of French stock Vallourec, South African  MTN Group  and US 

name Seadrill.

• These three stocks accounted for 50% of total revenue to date.

• Utilisation at 3.7% across all funds, we expect this to increase over time as more borrowers approve the Wales 

funds.

P
age 55



4northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

TOP 10 SECURITIES BY REVENUE

• Demand in the top ten securities was primarily driven by demand for French and HK directional stocks.

• The top ten performing securities accounted for 74% of net earnings (£53,620)

• The average spread for the top 10 was 156.45 bps compared to 18.28 bps for all other securities. 

P
age 56



5northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

LENDING BREAKDOWN ASSET AND COUNTRY

P
age 57



6northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

LENDING BREAKDOWN ASSET AND COUNTRY

P
age 58



7northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

BORROWER UTILISATION AND COLLATERAL AS OF 30TH APRIL

P
age 59



8northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

BORROWER UTILISATION AND COLLATERAL AS OF 30TH APRIL

P
age 60



9northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

BORROWER UTILISATION AND COLLATERAL AS OF 30TH APRIL

P
age 61



10northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

NON-CASH COLLATERAL SUMMARY:  30TH APRIL
Non-Cash Collateral Asset Breakdown

• As of 30th April LF Wales largest three borrowers were:

— BNP Paribas Prime Brokerage – £46,302,889

— ING Bank NV London Branch - £34,183,408

— Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Ltd – 24,990,290

• The top 3 borrowers made up 52% of the total market value on loan. 

• Same-currency fixed income collateral (and US equities) at 102% 

margin; cross-currency fixed income and all other equities at 105% 

margin

• Average margin across all loans was 107.57% 

Country Equities Govt Debt Total

Australia 403,310 164,343 567,653 

Austria 267,193 267,193 

Canada 52,746 26,092 78,837 

Denmark 272,229 272,229 

Finland 113 113 

France 1,663,806 699,283 2,363,089 

Germany 3,076,070 2,943,734 6,019,804 

Hong Kong 6,055,820 6,055,820 

Japan 10,263,528 10,263,528 

Netherlands 2,507,125 882,730 3,389,855 

Norway 501,087 501,087 

Sweden 225,976 1,239 227,215 

Switzerland 2,382,733 140,797 2,523,530 

United Kingdom 18,095,571 1,099,843 19,195,219 

United States 112,835,959 40,019,551 152,855,510 

Total 158,335,960 46,244,918 204,580,878 

P
age 62



11northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

BENCHMARKING  2020

Benchmarking  versus LGPS Benchmark  ( Exclude funds in client filter, weighted to client lendable ,Only dividends in client filter,  UK Fiscal location , Non Cash 

collateral – Flexibility 1 and 2, Agency Only ) 

Wales underperformed the LGPS Benchmark from a utilisation 

perspective, with average of 4.34% versus 6.08%, this is due to 

launch of the funds and the approval process of borrowers having 

access to the assets.

Wales outperformed on a weighted fee basis with an average bps 

spread of 54.08 bps versus LGPS benchmark of  23.48 bps, this 

was due to the demand for directional specials held by Wales.

Due to greater fees on the Wales assets the SL Return to lendable 

was superior to its peer group at  2.35bps versus 1.43bps.

P
age 63



12northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

MANUFACTURED DIVIDEND RATE (MDR) 

1Some dividends are unfranked and will pay with WHT (Withholding Tax).
2 Some dividends pay as IOC (Interest Over Capital) and will suffer WHT.
3 Some securities may pay at differing WHT.
4 Inward listing securities may pay at differing WHT.
5 For UK the rate reflects the net rate distribution. 

Northern Trust will claim manufactured interest at a rate of 100% for all fixed income securities held, regardless of the country

of incorporation of the asset.

Market Dividends Market Dividends

Australia1 100 Mexico 90

Austria 100 Netherlands 100

Belgium 100 New Zealand 85

Brazil2 100 Norway 100

Canada 100 Poland 81

Czech 

Republic 65 Portugal 75

Denmark 85 Singapore 100

Finland 100

Singapore 

REIT’s 100

France 100 South Africa4 80

Germany 90 South Korea 85

Hong Kong 100 Spain 100

Hungary 100 Sweden 100

Ireland 100 Switzerland 100

Israel3 100 Taiwan 79

Italy 85 Thailand 90

Japan 100 UK5 100

USA 100

• Manufactured Dividend Rates (MDR’s) are used in the Securities Finance 

industry to define the rate at which Dividend Payments, accrued whilst 

securities are on loan, should be manufactured back to a beneficial owner. 

• Due to the nature of Securities Lending Transactions, these rates are inclusive 

of individual beneficial owners’ reclaim ability.

For example, a beneficial owner may 

suffer 30% Withheld Tax (WHT) on 

French dividend payments with the 

ability to reclaim 15% from the Local Tax 

Authority. In this scenario, the MDR of 

the lending transaction would be set to 

85% being the net of the 30% WHT and 

15% reclaim. 

• Please note that this is our understanding of the MDR’s as applicable to you, 

but is not intended to be a comprehensive analysis of the tax regulations 

relating to securities lending. 

• Clients may at any time instruct the Agent in writing to apply an applicable tax 

rate to your manufactured dividend income that is different from the rate 

stated. Until such notice is received, your agent will continue to apply the rates 

set forth herein. Any future changes in the market that affect your rates will 

continue to be actioned unless otherwise advised by you.

P
age 64



13northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

GLOBAL EQUITY REPORT

• Executive Summary

Global equity markets experienced their highest level of volatility since 2008. The leading index for global equities, MSCI World, fell more than 13% 

over the month, the biggest single monthly decline since October 2008 and the 3rd worst monthly decline since the index started in 1970.

Stock markets came under massive pressure, with the S&P falling 12% in one day alone mid-month, and the index recording eight days with gains 

or losses greater than 5%

Central banks across the globe cut interest rates and introduced numerous liquidity-providing measures to help support markets

Governments announced wide reaching stimulus packages to help those most impacted by the global public health crisis. 

Short selling restrictions were introduced in some countries including; Austria, Belgium, France, Greece, Italy, Spain, Turkey, Malaysia, South 

Korea in an effort to protect declining equity markets 

Global dividend distributions are expected to experience unprecedented declines as governing bodies and regulators encourage companies, 

especially banks, to cut, cancel or postpone 2020 distribution to help preserve capital. Some analysts are forecasting that dividend cuts for the S&P 

could be as much as 25-30%

Overall utilization rates across our global equity lending book (once adjusted for market movements) increased as a function of increased short 

interest.

By mid-month, hedge fund’s risk appetite declined, with widespread de-risking and deleveraging taking place as highly volatile and uncorrelated 

markets negatively impacted performance. 

P
age 65



14northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

GLOBAL EQUITY REPORT

• APAC

Major Asian markets fell sharply through the month as investor sentiment over the spread of the coronavirus, which emanated from the region, 

remain highly negative.

In Hong Kong, the Hang Seng limited its monthly declines to single digits with the HSI receding +9.5% for the period. The decline was limited 

mainly due to the knock-on effect of stimulus measures previously announced in China although even the mainland markets were being dragged 

down again by month end due to the overriding negative global sentiment. 

Loan volumes declined amidst falling market prices. Furthermore, we also saw borrowers unwind many of their most expensive cost to carry trades 

as their hedge fund clients reduced risk and rotated short exposures

In Korea, the FSC announced an outright ban on short selling activity for a 6 month period starting 16th March, ending 15th September. Korea has 

introduced similar measures previously, notably after the GFC. However, the measures did not do anything to differentiate the market from other 

major markets indices and the KOSPI finished 11.69% down for the month. 

This impact from a securities lending perspective was modest, however on loan volumes have fallen as short positions are naturally unwound and 

not replaced.

Japan represented the one market to buck the trend in region. Japan’s march month-end dividend record dates was the catalyst for the usual 

increase in seasonal activity

Toward month end the market was eagerly awaiting the announcement of further stimulus measures from the Abe government to combat the 

economic downturn. The Nikkei225 declined 10.53% through the month.

Australian lending activity was somewhat buoyed by dividend record date activity as we moved through earnings season. However, attrition caused 

by falling share prices was apparent by month end as on-loan values fell markedly. By 30th March the Australian government followed the lead of 

other major economies by announcing an A$130bn stimulus on top of measures previously announced. The ASX 200 however finished the month 

down a jaw dropping 21.18%

We continued to see a number of capital raising activities across APAC and expect this trend to continue as companies race to raise cash in order 

to shore up their reserves. 

P
age 66



15northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

GLOBAL EQUITY REPORT

• EMEA

Securities lending volumes increased as a function of increased short interest, specifically within those sectors most exposed to the effects of the 

COVID-19. 

A reduction in global mobility, along with global supply chain disruption have been the main underlying demand drivers – key sectors include; 

Airlines, Travel & Tourism, Energy and Industrials 

An increase in equity market volatility resulting in borrowers holding less internal equity inventory, as client’s and internal trading desk sold out of 

index positions. This reduction in internal inventory created a greater need to source supply from securities lending market, helping support higher 

utilisations rates.

A number of short sale ban were announced across Europe in reaction to the increasing price volatility. They vary in scope and time scale. The 

impact from an SL has been minimal and largely indirect. 

Overall lending spreads softened in March due to the combination of the completion of significant corporate events in February and a number of 

markets implementing a short sale ban’s in response to sharp falls in the equity markets, which limited hedges funds short interest activity. 

Existing short interest in the retails sector remained high, given the social mobility impact of virus. That said, demand remained focused on 

companies burdened with high debt 

The Prudent Regulation Authority, the supervisory arm of the Bank of England actively encouraged UK Banks to cancel dividend payments in order 

preserve capital. Many of the country’s largest banks (including HSBC, Barclays and Standard Chartered) all cancelled payment. 

Demand for ETFs has been elevated, both sector specific ETFs and those that tracking broad based indices. More specifically, we have also seen 

elevated demand to borrow ETFs that replicate the performance of baskets of High Yield corporate bonds. As investors looked to reduce their 

exposure to risk assets, there has been a significant outflow of capital from the corporate high yield space. This has been the catalyst for increased 

short interest, at materially higher lending spreads. We have seen this dynamic play out in both Europe and the US.

P
age 67



16northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

GLOBAL EQUITY REPORT

• AMERICAS

All major U.S. indices declined, with the S&P 500, Dow Jones and Nasdaq falling 12.5%, 13.7% and 10.1% respectively. The S&P 500 decline 

ended its longest bull market in history.

U.S. Federal Reserve lowered its main interest rate close to zero, announce unlimited purchases of US Treasuries and mortgage-backed securities 

guaranteed by government agencies and resurrected a series of facilities dating back to 2008 to support credit markets.

Securities lending volumes decreased in March as a function of negative mark-to-market given the market sold off. Borrower demand was up but 

only partially off-setting market depreciation.

Hedge fund managers de-risked their portfolio to reduce their exposure to market volatility. Short interest increased across those sectors most 

exposed to the restricted global mobility (airlines, travel and tourism). 

There was a significant increase in demand to borrow index tracking ETFs. This asset class represents an efficient tool to hedge investor’s long 

exposures to declining equity market valuations. 

Elsewhere, a move to safe-haven assets has been a catalyst for significant outflows from corporate high yield. Several high yield ETF, including 

BlackRock’s flagship high-yield ETF (HYG) experienced material outflows. This was a catalyst for a significant increase in short interest at wider 

lending spreads.

In Canada, the SPTSX Composite Index ended the month falling 18.83% despite the introduction of several significant fiscal stimulus packages

In an effort to soften the economic impact of COVID-19, the BoC cut the overnight benchmark rate three times through March, each by 50bps, with 

the rate falling from 1.75% to 0.25%.

Hospitality, real estate and travel sectors saw an increased in short interest. Financial stocks suffered through aggressive rate cuts initiated by the 

BoC, while energy prices tested new lows with the price war between Saudi Arabia and Russia, triggering a major fall in crude prices.

P
age 68



17northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

NORTHERN TRUST ACCEPTABLE GOVERNMENT DEBT COLLATERAL

• Northern Trust accepts OECD government debt as collateral on behalf of our clients if it is listed as acceptable collateral per 

the client’s collateral guidelines. OECD government debt may be accepted as collateral for the lending of either fixed income or

equity securities. 

• Northern Trust currently accepts OECD government debt of the following countries, although this is subject to change. Northern 

Trust may operate with more conservative requirements at its discretion. 

Country 
Standard & 

Poor’s Rating 

Moody’s 

Rating
Fitch Rating 

Austria AA+ Aa1 AA+

Australia AAA Aaa AAA

Canada AAA Aaa AAA

Denmark AAA Aaa AAA

Finland AA+ Aa1 AA+

France AA Aa2 AA

Germany AAA Aaa AAA

Japan A+ A1 A

Netherlands AAA Aaa AAA

New Zealand AA Aaa AA

Norway AAA Aaa AAA

Sweden AAA Aaa AAA

Switzerland AAA Aaa AAA

UK AA Aa2 AA

USA AA+ Aaa AAA

P
age 69



18northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

Scope of the Regulation Detail and Challenges Considerations Next Steps

• Transaction reporting regime aimed at 

giving regulators insight into market 

activity.

• Loan data to be submitted on a T+1 

basis with collateral data on SD+1. 

• All EU domiciled participants are 

required to report with a current go live 

date estimate of Q2 2020. 

• The scope extends to non-EU domiciled 

participants, in order to support the 

reporting obligations of those that are 

domiciled within the EU. 

• 140+ reportable fields depending on the 

structure of the transaction

• Each transaction will require a “UTI” 

(Unique Transaction Identifier) which 

must match on both sides of the 

transaction. 

• Each transaction will require an 

execution timestamp which must match 

within a reasonable tolerance. 

• The new regulation will require 

beneficial owner to report every 

transaction, every day.

• Provision of loan and collateral 

allocation data for non-EU lenders is 

mandatory when lending to EU 

domiciled borrowers.

• The reporting obligation resides with the 

beneficial owner – not the agent lender 

– and an EU domiciled borrower. 

• Northern Trust will offer reporting 

services on behalf of its clients.

• All clients participating in the Northern 

Trust lending program will need to have 

an LEI. 

• There will need to be amendments to 

SLAA contracts to cater for SFTR.

• Northern Trust are working 

with multiple vendors to 

evaluate the best solution.

• Additionally, heavily engaged 

with ISLA in developing 

market practice to support the 

implementation

• An internal IT project is 

underway to make necessary 

changes to support reporting

• A series of client 

communications is planned in  

2018 and 2020 to educate 

and prepare lending clients for 

the implementation. 

SECURITIES FINANCING TRANSACTION REPORTING - SFTR

P
age 70



19northerntrust.com  |  © 2020 NorthernTrust

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Confidentiality Notice: This communication is confidential, may be privileged, and is meant only for the intended recipient. If you are not the 

intended recipient, please notify the sender as soon as possible. All materials contained in this presentation, including the description of Northern 

Trust, its systems, processes and pricing methodology, are proprietary information of Northern Trust. In consideration of acceptance of these 

materials, the recipient agrees that it will keep all such materials strictly confidential and that it will not, without the prior written consent of Northern 

Trust, distribute such materials or any part thereof to any person outside the recipient’s organization or to any individual within the recipient’s 

organization who is not directly involved in reviewing this presentation, unless required to do so by applicable law. If the recipient is a consultant 

acting on behalf of a third party client, the recipient may share such materials with its client if it includes a copy of these restrictions with such 

materials. In such event, the client agrees to comply with these restrictions in consideration of its accepting such materials.

© 2020 Northern Trust Corporation. Head Office: 50 South La Salle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60603 U.S.A. Incorporated with limited liability in the 

U.S. Products and services provided by subsidiaries of Northern Trust Corporation may vary in different markets and are offered in accordance with 

local regulation. This material is directed to professional clients only and is not intended for retail clients. For Asia-Pacific markets, it is directed to 

expert, institutional, professional and wholesale investors only and should not be relied upon by retail clients or investors. For legal and regulatory 

information about our offices and legal entities, visit northerntrust.com/disclosures. The following information is provided to comply with local 

disclosure requirements: The Northern Trust Company, London Branch; Northern Trust Global Services SE; Northern Trust Global Investments 

Limited; Northern Trust Securities LLP. Northern Trust Global Services SE, Abu Dhabi Branch, registration Number 000000519 licenced by ADGM 

under FSRA # 160018. The Northern Trust Company of Saudi Arabia - a Saudi closed joint stock company - Capital SAR 52 million. Licensed by the 

Capital Market Authority - License No. 12163-26 - C.R: 1010366439. Northern Trust Global Services SE Luxembourg Branch, 6 rue Lou Hemmer, L-

1748 Senningerberg, Grand-Duché de Luxembourg, Succursale d’une société de droit étranger RCS B129936. Northern Trust Luxembourg 

Management Company S.A., 6 rue Lou Hemmer, L-1748 Senningerberg, Grand-Duché de Luxembourg, Société anonyme RCS B99167. Northern 

Trust (Guernsey) Limited (2651)/Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Guernsey) Limited (29806)/Northern Trust International Fund Administration 

Services (Guernsey) Limited (15532) Registered Office: Trafalgar Court Les Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 3DA. 

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

SUBJECT

WPP CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND PROCEDURE POLICY

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To approve the WPP Conflicts of Interest and Procedure Policy

REASONS: 

A Conflicts of Interest and Procedure Policy has been developed for the Wales 
Pension Partnership and requires approval by the JGC.

Report Author:
Chris Moore

Designation:
Director of Corporate Services

Carmarthenshire County 
Council

Tel No. 01267 224160 

E. Mail: 
CMoore@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

WPP CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND PROCEDURE POLICY

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

The WPP has a fiduciary and legal duty to act in the best interest of the WPP’s 
stakeholders and beneficiaries, but this does not preclude WPP Personnel and 
Providers from having other roles or responsibilities which may result in a conflict 
of interest. It is important that good governance principles are followed and that a 
conflict of interest and procedure policy, such as this, is put in place to outline 
how conflicts are identified, managed and monitored. 

The policy applies to all WPP Personnel and Providers. The current list of WPP 
Personnel and Providers is attached, this will be available on the WPP’s website 
and will be updated, as and when required.  

Also attached is a copy of the Conflict of Interest Register that will be maintained 
by the Host Authority.  

The Policy will be formally reviewed by the OWG, and updated if required, on an 
annual basis. However, the Policy may be reviewed or amended more frequently 
if the WPP needs to take account of relevant guidance or regulations. The 
WPP’s Policy will be an annual JGC agenda item, this will ensure that the WPP 
provides full transparency of its conflicts of interest at least annually. 

Page 74



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

YES NONE NONE NONE NONE

Policy
A conflicts of interest and procedure policy has been developed which will be a formal 
document for the Wales Pension Partnership.

Page 75



CONSULTATIONS

Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Page 76



Conflicts of Interest and Procedure Policy (“Policy”)
 Introduction

1. This policy sets out principles which the Joint Governance Committee (“JGC”), Officer Working Group 
(“OWG”), Host Authority, collectively referred to as “WPP Personnel”, alongside advisors and suppliers 
(“Providers”) are expected to follow for the purpose of identifying, managing and monitoring conflicts of 
interest in relation to their duty they carry out for the Wales Pension Partnership (“WPP”). 

2. The Constituent Authorities of the WPP have always had to identify, manage and monitor conflicts of 
interest. The process of Local Government Pension Scheme (“LGPS”) pooling has resulted in the Wales 
Pension Partnership also having to deal with the existence of conflicts of interests. This simply reflects 
the fact that WPP Personnel and Providers will have a variety of other roles and responsibilities, for 
example as members of the Constituent Authority Schemes or as an adviser to more than one of the 
WPP’s Constituent Authorities.

3. The WPP has a fiduciary and legal duty to act in the best interest of the WPP’s stakeholders and 
beneficiaries, but this does not preclude WPP Personnel and Providers from having other roles or 
responsibilities which may result in a conflict of interest. It is important that good governance principles 
are followed and that a conflict of interest and procedure policy, such as this, is put in place to outline how 
conflicts are identified, managed and monitored,  

4. WPP’s objective in preparing and implementing this policy is to be able to: 

1.1 demonstrate its commitment to identifying, managing and monitoring conflicts of interest.

1.2 adherence to the WPP’s belief that good governance and transparency will deliver superior 
outcomes for WPP stakeholders.

1.3 continue the WPP’s creation of a decision making and governance framework that is focussed on 
achieving the best outcomes for the WPP’s stakeholders.

5. The WPP has adopted a definition of conflicts of interest which includes potential, perceived and actual 
conflicts. The WPP understands that it may not be possible to identify, manage and monitor all potential 
and perceived conflicts of interest, however it will endeavour to identify, manage and monitor these 
conflicts were possible. 

6. WPP recognises that a fail to manage conflicts of interest poses a material risks to the WPP, the 
consequences of which may include decisions that are not in the best interests of the WPP’s 
stakeholders, the WPP reputation being negatively impacted and referral to regulatory bodies. There are 
a number of factors that need to be monitor and managed to allow for the successful implementation of 
this Policy, these include: 

1.4 Effective communication of the responsibilities outlined in this policy.

1.5 Clear identification and ownership of the roles outlined in this policy.

1.6 Suitable training and understanding of the roles and responsibilities outlined in this policy.

7. This Policy is designed to provide guidance to WPP Personnel and Providers, its aims are to ensure that 
WPP Personnel and Providers do not act improperly. This policy has been developed by WPP in 
consultation with the Constituent Authorities. A list of WPP Personnel and Providers is publicly available 
of the WPP website.

Page 77



8. This Policy is reflective of the WPP’s belief that good governance and greater transparency will improve 
the decision-making process and deliver superior outcomes for WPP stakeholders. The WPP must 
endeavour to be aware of conflicts of interest and have procedures in place to manage them. This Policy 
outlines the procedures that WPP have adopted to do this.

9. The Host Authority will be responsible for monitoring conflicts of interest and ensuring that all WPP 
Personnel and Providers are aware and follow this policy. The Host Authority will collate declarations of 
conflict, formulate and maintain a conflict of interests register. 

10. The WPP recognises that training and education is critical to achieving good outcomes and will allocate 
resources to ensure that it undertakes regular training and education on identifying, managing and 
monitoring conflicts of interest.

11. Please note that this Policy is focused solely on conflicts of interest that may arise from the work that 
WPP Personnel or Providers carry out on behalf of the WPP. The WPP’s Constituent Authorities remain 
responsibility for managing the conflicts of interest that WPP Personnel or Providers may encounter when 
carrying out work at a Constituent Authority level. Alongside meeting the requirements and expectation of 
this Policy, WPP Personnel and Providers should continue to adhere to any other conflict of interest 
management policies that they are subject to, this may include Constituent Authority or company policies 
and other relevant codes of conducts. 

12. The WPP’s Conflicts of Interest and Procedure Policy will be formally reviewed by the OWG, and updated 
if required, on an annual basis. However, the Policy may be reviewed or amended more frequently if the 
WPP needs to take account of relevant guidance or regulations. The WPP’s Policy will be an annual JGC 
agenda item, this will ensure that the WPP provides full transparency of its conflicts of interest at least 
annually. 

Definition & Interpretation 
13. The WPP, in formulating this Policy, has been guided by the basic principle of a conflicts of interest – ‘a 

man must not put himself in a position where duty and interest conflict or where his duty to one conflicts 
with his duty to another unless expressly authorised' (High Court case of Re Thompson's Settlement 
[1986]).  

14. The WPP has adopted the Public Service Pensions Act 2013’s definition of a conflict of interest, which 
states that a conflict of interest is a financial or other interest which is likely to prejudice a person’s 
exercise of functions. 

15. The WPP recognises that a conflict of interest may be present when WPP Personnel or a Provider has a 
responsibility or fiduciary duty in the operation, decision making process or management of the WPP but 
also has:

1.7 A separate personal or corporate interest, which can be financial or non-financial in nature

1.8 Another connection to the matter that may provide a possible conflict with their primary responsibility 
to the WPP. This interest could arise through association and may stem from a family member or 
colleague having an obligation or interest

Policy and Procedure
16. For this Policy to work WPP Personnel and Providers have agreed that they must:

1.9 acknowledge conflict of interest they may have;

Page 78



1.10 be open with each other on any conflicts of interest they may have;

1.11 adopt practical solutions; and

1.12 plan ahead and agree on how they will manage any conflicts of interest which arise.

17. With these objectives in mind the WPP has adopted the following procedure to gain full transparency and 
allow for the detailed record-keeping of any conflicts of interest within the WPP:

1.13 All WPP Personnel will provide on appointment, and once each year thereafter, a declaration of 
interest and related parties which will then be stored and made easily available to all WPP Personnel 
on the WPP’s documents portal. WPP Personnel will need to inform the Host Authority immediately 
should there be any change to the information contained in their declaration, they will also have to 
provide written confirmation of the changes. At the beginning of JGC meetings all JGC Members will 
have to formally declare their conflicts of interest. All other WPP Personnel and Providers will also 
have to declare any conflicts relating to any of the meeting’s agenda items. The attendees of OWG 
meetings will have to declare whether their declarations remain unchanged since the last meeting, 
this will be done at the beginning of each OWG meeting.

1.14 Any WPP Personnel who feels that they, or another member of the WPP community has a conflict of 
interest on a particular topic must advise the Monitoring Officer, so that advise can be sought. In this 
way the conflict of interest and the action taken can be recorded in the minutes. An entry will also be 
made in the WPP’s conflicts of interest register. 

1.15 Any WPP Personnel who feels that they, or another member of the WPP community has a conflict of 
interest that has arisen in between meetings must advise the Host Authority at the earliest 
opportunity, written confirmation should also be provided. The Host Authority will inform WPP 
Personnel of the conflict. An entry made in the WPP’s Conflicts of Interest Register will also be 
made. 

1.16 Providers to the WPP will be required to provide the Host Authority with details of their conflict 
management procedure or their professional code of practice. Providers will be provided with a copy 
of this Policy upon appointment.

1.17 Providers to the WPP are required to confirm that they will disclose to the Host Authority any conflict 
of interest that may arise, including any related third-party engagements. 

1.18 Any WPP Personnel and WPP Providers may identify information which they think should not be 
shared outside of the WPP and advise the Host Authority, this may relate to any potentially 
confidential or sensitive information such as potential manager appointments, amendments to 
investment strategies or personal declarations of conflicts. The Host Authority will then advise WPP 
Personnel, seeking a decision from them on how to proceed.

18. The WPP will seek to manage conflicts of interest in a fair and balanced way. The WPP has put in place 
a four-stage escalation process to effectively manage any conflicts of interest that have been identified as 
requiring further management:

1.19 The WPP may request further detail on the relevant conflict of interest to ensure that its nature and 
potential impact is fully understood. 

1.20 If required, the WPP will ask the relevant Personnel or Provider to abstain or voluntary exclude 
themselves on the matter over which they are conflicted.

Page 79



1.21 If the relevant Personnel or Provider is unwilling to abstain or voluntary exclude themselves then the 
WPP will ensure that the relevant Personnel or Provider is excluded from the matter over which they 
are conflicted.

1.22 If all previous endeavours fail, the WPP may ask the relevant WPP Personnel or Provider for their 
resignation.

The WPP’s four-stage escalation process will be suitable in most instances. However, there may be situations 
were an element of flexibility is required, in these instances the WPP will use its discretion to ensure the swift and 
effective management of the relevant conflict. For example, it may be apparent from the outset, that the conflict of 
interest can only be managed effectively through the resignation of the relevant WPP Personnel or Provider.

Guidance and Legislation
19. The WPP notes that no specific government legislation on managing the conflicts of interest that may 

result for the pooling of LGPS has been provided to date. However, in formulating this Policy the WPP 
has consider and incorporated the following guidance and regulation much of which is targeted at LGPS 
and Private Sector Pension Schemes but is equally applicable to LGPS pools.

20. The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 is focussed on Pension Boards, however in formulating this Policy 
the WPP has extrapolated the following guidance from the Act, the WPP must be;

1.23 Satisfied, that on appointment, WPP Personnel do not have a conflict of interest that cannot be 
adequately managed and monitored. 

1.24 Satisfied from time to time that no WPP Personnel has a conflict of interest that cannot be 
adequately managed and monitored. 

1.25 Requiring WPP Personnel, or a soon to be appointed individual, to provide the WPP with such 
information as reasonably required for the WPP to be satisfied of points 20.1 and 20.2. 

Please note that regulation 108 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 applied the 
requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act to the LGPS.

21. The WPP will continue to engage with the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government 
(“MHCLG”) and Scheme Advisory Board and take account of any relevant guidance in relation to conflicts 
of interest and the effective management of these. The WPP will update this policy when required to 
ensure that it is in keeping with relevant guidance.

22. The WPP recognises that Constituent Authority elected members must give due considerations of ‘The 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales’ Ten Guiding Principles’ when carrying out their designated role. 
in line with Welsh National Assembly guidance, the WPP expects all WPP Personnel to be aware of the 
ten principles and to recognise the importance and significance of these principles when they carry out 
work on behalf of the WPP. The WPP has considered these principles when formulating this Policy and 
notes the importance of WPP Personnel adopting these principles to ensure the efficient implementation 
of this Policy: 

1.26 Selflessness 

1.27 Honesty 

1.28 Integrity and Propriety 

1.29 Duty to Uphold the Law 

Page 80



1.30 Stewardship 

1.31 Objectivity in Decision-making 

1.32 Equality and Respect 

1.33 Openness 

1.34 Accountability 

1.35 Leadership 

23. The Pension Regulator has provided guidance to help manage conflicts of interest in a number of codes 
of practice and guidance issued since April 2005, including their guidance on conflicts of interest. Section 
90A.2G of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 stated the Pension Regulator would be required to issue 
a code of practice relating to conflicts of interest. The Pensions Regulator produced a Conflicts of Interest 
Guidance document, the WPP recognises that this guidance has been formulated with regards to 
Pension Boards, however the general principles and guidance have been considered in the development 
of this code. The Regulator’s Conflicts of Interest Guidance document has been issued to all WPP 
Personnel and is available through the WPP’s online document storage facility. The codes and guidance 
can be found on the regulator's website - www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk 

24. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accounting report on Investment Pooling Governance 
Principles for LGPS Administering Authorities notes that the introduction of LGPS pooling will have a 
material impact of the roles carried out by LGPS committee members, representatives, officers and 
advisors. The Report highlights the need for conflict of interest policies to be updated to reflect the new 
conflicts that may arise from LGPS pooling. The WPP expected its Personnel to proactively notify their 
Constituent Authority of any new conflicts that may arises from their WPP activities. Furthermore, the 
WPP has considered the new conflicts that may arise from LGPS pooling in formulating this policy and 
has sought to enact policies and procedures that will manage these conflicts.

Further Information 
25. If you require any further details on the WPP’s Conflict of Interest and Procedure Policy, please contact 

walespensionpartnership@carmarthenshire.gov.uk. 

Version 1.0
June 2020

Page 81

http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



WPP – Conflict of Interest Register
This document is intended to document and monitor the conflicts of interest of WPP Personnel and Providers.

Examples
Possible areas that could give rise to conflicts of interest include:

 Being a Scheme Member of one of the underlying Constituent Authority Schemes.

 Providing advice or other services to one of the underlying Constituent Authority as well as providing the same services to WPP.

 WPP Personnel accepts a dinner invitation from a potential provider who has submitted a bid or tendering for a role. 

 A WPP Provider provides advice or a service to another LGPS Pool.

 WPP Personnel is discussing a matter which could benefit their local Constituent Authority at the expense of the other Constituent Authorities.

Date 
Identified

Name Role Details of conflict(s) identified Actual or 
Potential 
Conflict

Details of action taken to manage/monitor the 
conflict(s)

Review 
Date

Date 
Resolved/ 
Monitoring 
No Longer 
Required

EXAMPLE

20/04/2020 John 

Williams

JGC 

Member

Scheme Member of one of the underlying 

Constituent Authority Schemes

Actual  Councillor Smith will declare his conflict at the start of 
each JGC meeting.

 Councillor Smith must inform the Host Authority 
immediately should there be any change to this conflict.

 Etc…

20/04/2020 Ongoing

P
age 83

https://www.walespensionpartnership.org/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



WPP – List of WPP 
Personnel & Providers
The current list of WPP Personnel and Providers is as follows:

Name Role

Chris Moore Carmarthenshire County Council

Linda Rees Jones Carmarthenshire County Council

Anthony Parnell Carmarthenshire County Council

Tracey Williams Carmarthenshire County Council

Gaynor Morgan Carmarthenshire County Council

Jessica Laimann Carmarthenshire County Council

Julian Lewis Carmarthenshire County Council

Dafydd Edwards Cyngor Sir Gwynedd 

Delyth Wyn Jones Thomas Cyngor Sir Gwynedd 

Marina Parry Owen Cyngor Sir Gwynedd 

Chris Lee City of Cardiff Council

Mark Falconer City of Cardiff Council

Gary Watkins City of Cardiff Council

Ben Smith City and County of Swansea

Jeff Dong City and County of Swansea

Karen Cobb City and County of Swansea

Nigel Aurelius Torfaen County Borough Council

Alexander Bull Torfaen County Borough Council

Gary Ferguson Flintshire County Council

Phil Latham Flintshire County Council

Debbie Fielder Flintshire County Council

Jane Thomas Powys County Council

Page 85

https://www.walespensionpartnership.org/


Chris Hurst Powys County Council

Dan Paley Powys County Council

Barrie Davies Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council

Paul Griffiths Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council

Yvonne Keitch Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council

Cllr Peter Lewis JGC/ Powys County Council

Cllr Glyn Caron JGC/ Torfaen County Borough Council

Cllr Elwyn Williams JGC/ Carmarthenshire County Council

Cllr Mark Norris JGC/ Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council

Cllr Aaron Shotton JGC/ Flintshire County Council

Cllr Clive Lloyd JGC/ City and County of Swansea

Cllr Christopher Weaver JGC/ City of Cardiff Council

Cyng John Pughe Roberts JGC/ Cyngor Sir Gwynedd

The WPP appoints its own advisers and service providers. WPP advisers or suppliers will be expected to only 
provide advice or services to the WPP once they have confirmed that they are not aware of any conflicts of 
interest or have clearly stated any known conflicts. All WPP advisers and service providers also have a 
professional responsibility to advise the WPP if any circumstances arise in which they are conflicted. The 
WPP notes that a number of its Advisors and Providers will have a guideline for dealing with conflicts as part 
of their membership of their respective professional bodies. The current list of key WPP advisors and service 
providers are as follows:

Name Role

Link Fund Solutions Operator

Russell Investments Investment Manager

Northern Trust Custodian 

Burges Salmon Legal Advisor

Hymans Robertson Oversight Advisor

Robeco Voting and Engagement Advisor

Page 86



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

SUBJECT

WPP CLIMATE RISK POLICY

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To approve the WPP Climate Risk Policy

REASONS: 

A Climate Risk Policy has been developed for the Wales Pension Partnership 
and requires approval by the JGC.

Report Author:
Chris Moore

Designation:
Director of Corporate Services

Carmarthenshire County 
Council

Tel No. 01267 224160 

E. Mail: 
CMoore@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 87

Agenda Item 9



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

WPP CLIMATE RISK POLICY

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

In line with WPP’s approved Responsible Investment Policy and WPP’s 
commitment to its ongoing approach towards Responsible Investment, a specific 
climate risk policy for the WPP has been developed.

This policy sets out WPP’s approach to addressing the requirements of the 
Constituent Authorities in regard to climate related risks and the monitoring of 
these risks. It has been developed in line with WPP’s beliefs and objectives.

The policy will be reviewed annually and the WPP will prepare and publish an 
annual report detailing the actions undertaken in fulfilment of this policy and the 
results achieved.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Page 88



 

IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

YES NONE NONE NONE NONE

Policy
A climate risk policy has been prepared which will be a formal document for the Wales Pension 
Partnership.

Page 89



CONSULTATIONS

Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Page 90



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP |  Hymans Robertson LLP

July 2020 001

WPP Climate Risk Policy
Introduction
 
1 The Wales Pension Partnership (“WPP”) is the pooling arrangement for the assets of the eight Welsh 

Local Government Pension Scheme funds (“Constituent Authorities”). 

2 The investment arrangements of WPP are overseen by a Joint Governance Committee (“JGC”) and 
supported by an Officer Working Group (“OWG”) and implemented through pooled funds managed by 
its “Investment Managers”. 

3 The Wales Pension Partnership (‘WPP’) recognises that climate change represents a material financial 
risk to its stakeholders, the Constituent Authorities. Climate change has the potential to disrupt 
economic, financial and social systems. 

4 The WPP is aware that climate change may result in mis-priced assets and unique investment 
opportunities. The WPP believes that its adherence to responsible investment policies and climate risk 
mitigation strategies will mean that it is well placed to identify and benefit from these potential 
investment opportunities for the benefit of its Constituent Authorities.

5 The potential impact on the WPP’s Constituent Authorities and their internal stakeholders (Scheme 
Members and Employers) is unknown, given policy uncertainty and the unknown physical impact from 
environmental systems.  Risks to the Constituent Authorities arising from climate change include, but 
are not limited to:

5.1 Physical risks: such as damage to property from flooding or lower precipitation giving rise to crop 
failure.  Such impact could be felt directly by CA’s or through the impact on returns delivered to 
CA’s by WPP funds;

5.2 Transition risks: being the financial risks arising from changes in policy and technology to adjust to 
a lower-carbon economy and the extent to which these flow through to the returns delivered to 
CA’s by WPP funds;

5.3 Liability risks: being the potential costs arising from parties who have suffered loss or damage due 
to climate change seeking compensation from those they hold responsible.

6 This policy sets out the WPP’s approach to addressing the requirements of the Constituent Authorities 
in regard to climate related risks and the monitoring of these risks. 

7 This policy will be reviewed by WPP on an annual basis and, if necessary, changes to the policy will be 
proposed to and agreed by the JGC and OWG.  As part of the annual review process the WPP will take 
account of the evolving risk to and requirements of the Constituent Authorities.

8 This policy will have regard to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 and any 
relevant guidance provided by the Scheme Advisory Board (“SAB”), the Ministry of Housing 
Communities and Local Government (“MHCLG”), Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC”) 
and the Welsh Government. 

9 In maintaining and acting on this policy, the WPP will have an ongoing dialogue with its Operator, 
Investment Managers and Oversight Advisor. The WPP will also seek input from third parties where 
appropriate.

Page 91



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP |  Hymans Robertson LLP

July 2020 002

Beliefs 
10 The WPP has established a set of climate-related beliefs, which underpin its approach to dealing with 

the potential risk arising from climate change, and the mechanism it provides to the Constituent 
Authorities to facilitate the management of their climate related risks. The WPP’s beliefs are as follows:

10.1 Climate-related risks are systemic in nature and have the potential to impact the delivery of return 
from all asset classes and sectors to varying degrees.  Such impact may be positive or negative.

10.2 It is incumbent on WPP to identify potential sources of climate related risks in the development of 
any sub-fund and/or the procurement of any service from providers and, where necessary, seek to 
ensure such risks are appropriately managed and communicated to stakeholders.  

10.3 Solutions aimed at managing and mitigating climate-related risks can also provide opportunities to 
long term investors such as the WPP’s Constituent Authorities;

10.4 The WPP has appointed a specialist engagement services provider to directly engage with 
investee companies on a range of issues, including climate risk, to enhance the long-term value of 
the Constituent Authorities’ investments within WPP. As part of its mandate, the WPP’s 
engagement service provider will collaborate with other asset owners to maximise the effectiveness 
of the WPP’s engagement activities. The WPP believes that collaboration with other asset owners 
and its investment managers can be an effective method for engaging with investee companies 
and raising awareness of climate-related issues.

Objectives
11 WPP’s objective in preparing and implementing this policy is to: 

11.1 demonstrate to its stakeholders that the WPP takes account of climate change and the climate-
related risk associated with it; 

11.2 enable the Constituent Authorities to substantially implement their own climate risk policy and 
climate related targets and ambitions; and

11.3 formally outline the actions that the WPP will be held accountable for by its stakeholders.

12 With regard to climate change, the WPP’s own objective is to progressively reduce the likelihood that 
climate-related risks impact on the value or performance of the assets held within the WPP.

13 The Constituent Authorities are responsible for their own investment strategy, including their own 
Climate Risk Policy. The WPP will engage with the Constituent Authorities to fully understand their 
Climate Risk Policies and what implementation solutions they require to meet their policy commitments. 
The Constituent Authorities are aware that there may be additional costs associated with the WPP’s 
facilitation of these investment solutions. The WPP and CAs will work together to find practical solutions 
to ensure that climate risk is being discussed and managed in the most suitable way

14 The WPP recognises that the Constituent Authorities will develop and maintain their own climate 
change objectives and policies.

Strategy
15 The WPP recognise that all assets have some level of exposure to climate-related risks, particularly 

transition risks, but that sector, geography, policy uncertainty and investment timeframes are key 
determinants of climate risk exposure.

Page 92



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP |  Hymans Robertson LLP

July 2020 003

16 Recognising its current investment arrangements and offerings, the WPP’s immediate focus will be on 
climate-related risk exposure within its equity holdings.  The WPP will however consider climate-related 
risks in other asset classes, for example fixed income, should circumstances allow or require them to do 
so. The WPP will endeavour to provide climate risk solutions across all of it sub-funds, including private 
market assets. 

17 The WPP will provide a range of sub-funds and implementation solutions that allow the Constituent 
Authorities to achieve their own carbon reduction targets. 

18 The WPP recognises the importance of monitoring exposure to climate related risks in different ways. 
One way the WPP will facilitate this is by monitoring the carbon risk exposure of each sub-fund to ensure 
that the Constituent Authorities have all available information at their disposal.  The WPP will explore how 
best to assess climate risk exposures for each sub-fund. The WPP believes that external suppliers can 
be a cost-effective means of enhancing its climate risk exposure assessment capabilities, an analysis of 
current supplier offerings will be carried out on approval of this policy and at least annually thereafter. If 
a suitable supplier is identified, they will be appointed.

19 The WPP will consider the merits of undertaking scenario analysis around the potential economic impact 
of climate-related risks and seek means of collaborating with providers to share knowledge on this across 
all Constituent Authorities. However, the WPP notes that this is an evolving area, and such analysis is in 
its infancy. The WPP will endeavour to facilitate climate scenario analysis across assets held within WPP 
as an additional form of climate risk assessment to support the Constituent Authorities in integrating this 
assessment into their funding and investment strategies.

20 The WPP recognises that training and education is critical to achieving good outcomes for its 
stakeholders and will allocate resources to ensure that it undertakes regular training and education on 
climate risk. The WPP has committed to hosting at least one annual climate risk related training session 
for all its stakeholders. The WPP develops an annual training plan in conjunction with the Constituent 
Authorities this is the mechanism by which the WPP gauges the climate risk training requirements of its 
stakeholders. 

Implementation
21 The WPP’s approach to manager selection is set out in its Responsible Investment Policy. The WPP’s 

sub-fund Investment Managers have delegated responsibility for challenging managers on their 
approaches to the consideration of climate risk as part of its manager selection process. 

22 The WPP expects its Investment Manager to ensure that all underlying active managers integrate the 
consideration of climate-related risks into their investment process and to regularly challenge underlying 
managers to evidence their approach. 

23 The WPP will work with its Investment Managers to ensure that they account for and integrate climate-
related risks into their investment processes. The WPP recognizes that the effective management of 
climate-related risks within portfolios is important in ensuring alignment with the Paris climate accord 
goals and that each Investment Manager will have its own approach to account for and integrate 
climate-related risk into their investment process which will be assessed and appraised on appointment. 
The WPP, on at least an annual basis, will review that the Investment Manager’s approach remains 
appropriate.

24 The WPP’s approach to stewardship is set out in their Responsible Investment Policy.  The WPP will 
emphasise the importance of engagement on climate-related risks through its voting and engagement 
service provider.  In particular, the WPP will encourage its engagement service provider to engage with 

Page 93



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP |  Hymans Robertson LLP

July 2020 004

investee companies on climate-related issues, including an increase in the disclosure on climate-related 
risks by companies to investors. 

25 The WPP is formulating its own Voting Policy and set of engagement principles which will outline how it 
will use its voting rights and how it will engage with investee companies. The WPP’s proxy voting 
service provider is responsible for enacting these policies on behalf of the WPP.

Monitoring/Reporting
26 The WPP will monitor exposure to climate related risks within its equity sub-funds on a quarterly basis, 

considering metrics which may include, but are not limited to, exposure to fossil fuel producers and 
carbon reserves; overall carbon intensity and alignment with future climate pathways. The WPP will 
monitor changes in market practice to ensure that the WPP is fully aware of changing best practice and 
the feasibility of monitoring climate related risk within its non-equity sub-funds on at least an annual 
basis. 

27 The WPP will require its Investment Managers to provide monitoring on climate-related risk exposure in 
their quarterly reports. The WPP will also require Investment Managers to include such metrics in their 
quarterly reporting to Constituent Authorities. As noted above, the WPP will initially expect their equity 
Investment Managers to provide this monitoring, with the expectation that its non-equity Investment 
Managers will provide this information as soon as sub-fund launches and market developments allow. 

28 The WPP’s proxy voting and engagement provider will be responsible for producing quarterly and 
annual reports on the WPP’s voting and engagement activities. These reports will evidence how the 
WPP has used engagement and voting to manage its climate related risk. 

29 The WPP has an ambition to report on progress on actions undertaken to address climate risk in line 
with the framework set out by the Taskforce for Climate-Related Financial Disclosures.  The WPP 
intend that their first report will be in respect of the 2020/21 Financial year.

Transparency
30 The WPP will encourage, through its delegates, all investee companies to disclose in line with the 

requirements of the Taskforce for Climate Related Financial Disclosures.

31 On an annual basis, the WPP will prepare and publish a report detailing the actions undertaken in 
fulfilment of this policy and the results achieved.

Page 94



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

SUBJECT

WPP RISK POLICY AND RISK REGISTER

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To approve the 
 WPP Risk Policy, and 
 WPP Risk Register

REASONS: 

A Risk Policy and Risk Register has been developed for the Wales Pension 
Partnership which requires approval by the JGC.

Report Author:
Chris Moore

Designation:
Director of Corporate Services

Carmarthenshire County 
Council

Tel No. 01267 224160 

E. Mail: 
CMoore@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 95

Agenda Item 10



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

WPP RISK POLICY AND RISK REGISTER

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

A Risk Policy and Risk Register has been developed for the Wales Pension 
Partnership (WPP).

This Risk Policy is reflective of WPP’s belief that good governance and greater 
transparency will improve the decision-making process and deliver superior outcomes 
for WPP stakeholders. The WPP recognises that all WPP Personnel and Providers 
have a role to play in identifying, understanding, managing and monitoring potential 
and actual risks facing the WPP.

The policy outlines the WPP’s:
 Beliefs and objectives in relation to Risk
 Risk Strategy
 Risk identification and understanding
 Risk management and monitoring 

The WPP has formulated a Risk Register which is the means by which risks are 
documented, managed and monitored. The purpose of the WPP Risk Register is to:

 Outline the WPP's key risks and factors that may limit its ability to meet its 
objectives

 Quantify the severity and probability of the risk facing the WPP
 Summarise the WPP's risk management strategies
 Monitor the ongoing significance of these risks and the requirement for further 

risk mitigation strategies

The Officers Working Group will be responsible for maintaining the WPP Risk Register 
and reporting back any changes or developments to the JGC on a quarterly basis.

Page 96



 

IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

YES NONE NONE NONE NONE

Policy
A risk policy and risk register has been developed which will be formal documents for the 
Wales Pension Partnership.

Page 97



CONSULTATIONS

Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Page 98



WPP Risk Policy 

 Introduction 

1 The Wales Pension Partnership (“WPP”) is the pooling arrangement for the assets of the eight Welsh 

Local Government Pension Scheme funds (“Constituent Authorities”).  

2 The Wales Pension Partnership (‘WPP’) recognises that it faces numerous risks which if left unmanaged 

can limit the WPP’s ability to meet its objectives and to act in the best interest of its stakeholders and 

beneficiaries. 

3 WPP’s objective in preparing this policy is to be able to outline:  

3.1 How the WPP views risks, its attitude to risk and the extent to which risk is accounted for in its 

governance and decision-making processes 

3.2 The means by which the WPP identifies, classifies and measures the potential impact of risks 

3.3 How risks are managed and mitigated 

3.4 The mechanisms and procedures in place to monitor risks 

3.5 The process by which the effectiveness and development of risk mitigation strategies are reviewed 

4 This Risk Policy applies to the Joint Governance Committee (“JGC”), Officer Working Group (“OWG”), 

Host Authority, collectively referred to as “WPP Personnel”, alongside advisors and suppliers 

(“Providers”). The WPP recognises that all WPP Personnel and Providers have a role to play in 

identifying, understanding, managing and monitoring potential and actual risks facing the WPP. 

5 This Policy is reflective of the WPP’s belief that good governance and greater transparency will improve 

the decision-making process and deliver superior outcomes for WPP stakeholders. The WPP must 

endeavour to be aware of all risks facing the WPP and have procedures in place to manage them.  

6 The WPP recognises that training and education is critical to achieving good outcomes and will allocate 

resources to ensure that it undertakes regular training and education on identifying, managing and 

monitoring risk. 

7 This Policy is focused solely on the risks that may arise from the work that WPP Personnel or Providers 

carry out on behalf of the WPP. The WPP’s Constituent Authorities remain responsibility for managing 

risks at a Constituent Authority level. Alongside meeting the requirements and expectation of this Policy, 

WPP Personnel and Providers should continue to adhere to any other risk policies that they are subject 

to, this may include Constituent Authority or company policies and other relevant codes of conducts. This 

policy has been developed by WPP in consultation with the Constituent Authorities.   

8 In maintaining and acting on this policy, the WPP will have an ongoing dialogue with its Operator, 

Investment Managers and Oversight Advisor. The WPP will also seek input from third parties where 

appropriate. 

9 The WPP’s Risk Policy will be formally reviewed by the OWG, and updated if required, on an annual 

basis. However, the Policy may be reviewed or amended more frequently to take account of relevant 

guidance or regulations. The WPP’s Policy will be an annual JGC agenda item.  

Beliefs 

10 The WPP is aware that some risks cannot be fully mitigated, it recognises the need to embrace risk and 

ensure that it is actively and effectively managed.   

Page 99



11 The WPP recognises that risk management is a critical element of its commitment to good governance as 

such the WPP will develop and adhere to a structured, extensive and robust risk strategy. This strategy 

will be imbedded into the WPP’s governance framework to ensure better decision-making, improved 

outcomes for stakeholders and greater efficiency.  

12 Effective identification, understanding, management and monitoring of risks will allow the WPP to; 

12.1 Minimise the probability of failing to meet its objectives 

12.2 Demonstrate its commitment to good governance 

12.3 Limit the extent to which it is impacted by unpredictable or adverse developments 

12.4 Correctly balance opportunities and risk 

12.5 Be better informed in its decision-making  

12.6 Achieve better outcomes for its stakeholders 

13 To deliver on its objectives, the WPP needs to carry out activities or seize opportunities that subject it to 

significant levels of risk. The extent to which the WPP is able to effectively balance risk and return will 

depend on the success of its Risk Policy. 

14 The WPP believes that risks are fluid in nature and that the severity and probability of risks can change 

rapidly and without fair warning. This highlights the need for the WPP’s Risk Policy to anticipate and deal 

with changes in a swift and effective manner to minimise potential loss or harm to the WPP and its 

stakeholders. 

15 It’s critical that prior to making decisions the WPP understands the associated risks and considers the 

means by which these risks could be managed. 

Objectives 

16 The primary objectives for WPP are: 

16.1 To provide pooling arrangements which allow individual funds to implement their own investment 

strategies (where practical)  

16.2 To achieve material cost savings for participating funds while improving or maintaining investment 

performance after fees 

16.3 To put in place robust governance arrangements to oversee the Pool’s activities 

16.4 To work closely with other pools in order to explore the benefits that all stakeholders in Wales might 

obtain from wider pooling solutions or potential direct investments 

16.5 To deliver an investment framework that achieves the best outcomes for its key stakeholders; the 

Constituent Authorities. The Constituent Authorities will be able to use this framework to deliver the 

best outcomes for their Scheme Members & Employers 

17 The greatest risk to the WPP’s continued operation is its ability to deliver on its primary objectives, if the 

WPP is unable to deliver investment performance, opportunities and cost savings within a robust 

governance framework the WPP risks: 

17.1 Constituent Authorities refusing to buy-in to the WPP and invest their assets with the WPP 

Page 100



17.2 Government intervention which may force the WPP to cease operations  

18 In recognition of the unique and critical nature of these risks the WPP has taken additional steps to 

manage these risks. The WPP Business Plan is the means by which the WPP gives special recognition 

of these risks and the actions required to manage them. The WPP’s Business Plan is reflective of the 

WPP’s need to: 

18.1 Provide a diverse and attractive set of investment opportunities to the Constituent Authorities  

18.2 Deliver improved investment performance after fees 

18.3 Facilitate broader cost savings to the Constituent Authorities  

18.4 Provide effective and robust governance arrangements 

19 During the course of the WPP Business Plan the follow actions will be prioritised to mitigate the risk of the 

WPP failing to meet these needs; 

19.1 Further sub-funds will be launched  

19.2 Best in class investment manager performance reporting will be developed 

19.3 The continued investigation of cost saving  

19.4 Further development of the WPP’s governance arrangements 

20 The WPP also recognises the significant risk posed by its reliance on its Operator. The WPP Business 

Plan’s commitment to formulating an Operator Oversight Framework is recognition of the need to take 

additional steps to manage this risk.  

Risk Strategy 

21 The WPP’s risk strategy is focussed on putting it place mechanisms and process that allow it to identify, 

understand, manage and monitor risk. The strategy is not only concerned with risks relating to the WPP’s 

current activities but also those carried out in the past or to be carried out in the future. 

22 As part of its risk strategy the WPP will carry out following: 

22.1 Risk Identification  

22.2 Risk Understanding 

22.3 Risk Management  

22.4 Risk Monitoring 

23 The WPP recognises the need to ensure that its risk strategy is: 

23.1 Effectively communicated and fully understood by WPP Personnel and Providers  

23.2 Integrated into all WPP processes, procedures and activities 

23.3 Adaptable, innovative and effective 

24 The Chair of the JGC will be responsible for ensuring that the WPP’s Risk Strategy is carried out and 

adhered too. However, all WPP Personnel and Providers have an individual duty to identify, understand, 

Page 101



manage and monitor any potential risks to the WPP. The OWG will be responsible for maintaining the 

WPP Risk Register, and reporting back any changes or developments to the JGC on a quarterly basis 

Identification and Understanding  

25 The WPP’s risk identification is focussed on identifying exiting risks and risks which may materialise in 

the future. A proactive approach to identifying future risk will allow the WPP to be proactive as opposed to 

reactive, this should ensure more efficient risk management.  

26 The WPP uses the following to identify risks: 

26.1 A detailed risk assessment exercise carried out by the OWG 

26.2 Feedback and communication with WPP’s stakeholders 

26.3 Internal or external audit exercises 

26.4 Regular meetings, conversations and consultations with other LGPS Pools, the Scheme Advisor 

Board and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government. 

26.5 An annual review of the WPP’s performance towards its long-term objectives 

26.6 Formulation of the WPP’s Annual Business Plan 

The WPP recognises that methods other than those outlined above can be an effective means of 

identifying risks and the WPP will look to employ these alternative methods if required.  

27 Once a risk has been identified the WPP will seek to understand the risk and its potential impacts. As part 

of this process the WPP will: 

27.1 Classify the nature of the risk 

27.2 Identify the cause of the risk 

27.3 Outline the potential impacts of the risk 

27.4 Consider the time period over which the impact will be felt 

27.5 State the Owner(s) of the Risk 

27.6 Attribute a probability and severity score to the risk 

27.7 Give the risk an overall risk score 

28 In understanding a risk, the WPP will consider whether the risk is Financial, Operational or Reputational 

in nature. In addition, the WPP will use the following criteria to classify the timeframe over which the 

impact of the risk will be felt: 

 

Short Term The majority of the impact is expected to materialise within a 12-month period 

Medium Term The majority of the impact is expected to materialise within a 1 to 3-year period 

Long Term The majority of the impact is expected to take longer than 3 years to materialise  

Page 102



29 The WPP will use the following system to attribute a probability score to a given risk: 

Probability Score: Probability % Probability 

1 Improbable 0-25% 

2 Unlikely 25-40% 

3 Possible 40-60% 

4 Likely 60-75% 

5 Highly Likely 75%+ 

 

30 The WPP will use the following system to attribute a severity score to a given risk: 

Severity Score: Impact % Impact 

1 Insignificant 0-25% 

2 Minor 25-40% 

3 Moderate 40-60% 

4 Significant 60-75% 

5 Critical 75%+ 

 

31 The Overall Risk Score is calculated by multiplying the severity score by the probability score. The 

Overall Risk Score is used to classify the risk based on the following matrix: 

 

32 Once the WPP has identified and understood a risk it will be documented in the WPP’s Risk Register. 

 

 

P
ro

b
a

b
ili

ty
 S

co
re

 

Severity Score 

  1 2 3 4 5 

1 Low Low Low Low Low 

2 Low Low Medium Medium High 

3 Low Medium Medium High High 

4 Low Medium  High Very High Very High 

5 Low High High Very High Very High 

Page 103



Management and Monitoring 

 

33 The WPP has formulated a Risk Register which is the means by which risks are documented, managed 

and monitored. The purpose of the WPP Risk Register is to:   

33.1 Outline the WPP's key risks and factors that may limit its ability to meet its objectives  

33.2 Quantify the severity and probability of the risk facing the WPP  

33.3 Summarise the WPP's risk management strategies      

33.4 Monitor the ongoing significance of these risks and the requirement for further risk mitigation 

strategies 

34 The Overall Risk score indicates the level of management that is required when the risk is initially added 

to the WPP’s Risk Register: 

 
 

35 The WPP’s risk management strategy considers what existing risk controls are in place, identifying 

existing controls is important in guaranteeing that any further risk management strategies are not 

inefficiently duplicating existing measures. Any existing risk controls will be clearly outlined in the WPP’s 

Risk Register.  

36 The next step of the WPP’s risk management strategy is to attribute a target risk score to each risk. The 

target risk score represents the risk that would remain if the WPP were to employ all possible risk 

management strategies with maximum efficiency, in this regard the score can be considered a ‘best-case 

scenario’. The WPP’s use of a target risk score is reflective of its belief that not all risks can be fully 

mitigated. 

37 Once a target risk score has been devised the WPP will consider if this score has been met, if it has not 

action will be taken to reduce the risk’s probability, severity or both. The Risk Register will state which 

party is responsible for the completion of this action. 

38 The Risk Register will provide a status update on the progression of the WPP’s risk management actions 

and activities. The WPP has adopted the following classification system: 

Green Low 

Priority 

1 to 5 No Action Required - Ongoing Monitoring Required 

Yellow Medium 

Priority 

6 to 9 Review Suitability of Existing Risk Mitigation 

Strategies 

Orange High 

Priority 

10 to 15 Action Required 

Red Very High 

Priority 

16 to 25 Urgent Action Required  

Page 104



 

39 The final stage of the WPP’s risk strategy is risk monitoring, this is the process by which the WPP 

considers and reviews if: 

39.1 Risk management actions have been completed or progressed since the last review date 

39.2 The risk management strategies have been effective 

39.3 Further action is required 

39.4 A risk’s characteristics have changed materially 

39.5 Lessons can be learnt which may improve future risk management 

40 The OWG will be responsible for maintaining the WPP Risk Register and reporting back any changes or 

developments to the JGC on a quarterly basis via the WPP’s Abbreviated Risk Register (Appendix 1). 

Any change in the risk score over the quarter will be clearly identified via the use of bold font. 

Further Information  

41 The WPP has identified the following as potential risks which may limit its ability to enact this policy: 

41.1 A lack of knowledge means that the WPP cannot effectively identify and understand risks 

41.2 A lack of resources means that the WPP cannot effectively identify and understand risks 

41.3 A lack of knowledge or resources limits the effectiveness of the WPP’s risk management strategies 

41.4 The WPP’s Risk Strategy is not fully understood by WPP Personnel and Provider and fails to 

become embedded into the WPP’s decision making process 

41.5 Other factors, such as conflicts or interest, interferes with the implementation of this policy 

The WPP will continually monitor these risks and were possible will take steps to mitigate these risks. 

42 If you require any further details on the WPP’s Risk Policy, please contact: 

walespensionpartnership@carmarthenshire.gov.uk.  

Version 1.0 

June 2020

Status Meaning Description 

👍 Satisfied 
The WPP has met its target risk score, its focus will revert to 

monitoring this risk and maintaining the current risk score.  

👍
 

Comfortable 

The WPP is comfortable that the risk score is progressing toward its 

target score. The WPP will continue to adhere to and implement the 

‘required actions’ until it becomes satisfied.  

👎 Unsatisfied 

The WPP remains concerned about this risk due to its significance or 

the progress made toward fulfilling the ‘required actions’ or the 

effectiveness of these actions. 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



Summary
Risk Category Target Risk Score Risk Score Last Quarter Current Risk Score Current Status Review Date

I.1 8 12 12

👍

I.2 10 10 10 👍

I.3 10 10 10 👍

I.4 4 8 8

👍

I.5 2 4 4

👍

I.6 8 8 8 👍

I.7 4 8 8

👍

I.8 4 8 8

👍

I.9 5 10 10

👍

G.1 10 15 15 👍

G.2 6 6 6 👍

G.3 4 8 8 👍

G.4 4 4 4 👍

G.5 8 8 8 👍

G.6 3 6 6 👍

G.7 8 8 8 👍

G.8 4 8 8 👍

G.9 10 10 10 👍

G.10 8 12 12 👎

G.11 8 12 12 👍

G.12 10 15 15 👎

T.1 3 6 6 👍

T.2 4 4 4  👍

T.3 4 4 4 👍

T.4 5 10 10 👎

C.1 4 8 8 👍

C.2 3 3 3 👍

C.3 3 3 3 👍

WPP Risk Register

OWG

OWG

Oversight Advisor

Comments

Oversight Advisor

OWG

OWG

OWG & Oversight Advisor

OWG

 OWG

OWG & Oversight Advisor

OWG

OWG

Responsible Party

OWG

OWG

OWG

Oversight Advisor

Investments & Performance

Governance & Regulation

Training & Resource

Communication

Q4 2020

Q3 2021

Q3 2021

Q1 2021

Q2 2021

Oversight Advisor

OWG

The Operator/ Investment Manager 

OWG

Oversight Advisor

OWG

Oversight Advisor

HA

HA

HA

HA/ Oversight Advisor

HA

P
age 107



Investment & Performance Risk

Current Situation

Cause of Risk Implications of Risk
Risk Owner & Imapct 

Period
Current Risk Controls Severity Probability Score Current Status Action Required

Responsible Party & 
Review Date

Progress Report/ Comments

4 3 12

4 2 8

5 2 10

5 2 10

5 2 10

5 2 10

4 2 8

4 1 4

N/A

Target

Risk Detail

 The OWG is con nuing to work 
with the Operator and the 
Investment Manager to improve 
the WPP's investment reporting 
mechanisms and the WPP’s level 
of communication and 
engagement with its Investment 
Managers.👎

Scoring

Current

Target

Management and Monitoring

Q4 2020

Risk & Nature of Risk

I.2

One of the WPP's 
Investment Managers fails/ 
exits the market, leading to 

a financial loss to WPP 
assets.

OWG

The probability of Investment Manager 
underperformance needs to be reduced, this can 
be achieved via the following mechanisms: 

 •Improved monitoring of investment performance 
& market developments and economic outlook
 •Increased engagement and communica on with 

Investment ManagersI.1

The WPP Sub-funds failure 
to achieve their targeted 

investment returns.

 •Ongoing monitoring of investment performance, 
market developments and economic outlook 
reported by the Investment Manager and the 
Operator and discussed at OWG meetings
 •The Operator/ the Investment Manager 

engagement with Investment Managers and 
ongoing reviews of their process    
 •Manager days hosted by the Operator/ the 

Investment Manager for OWG/Constituent 
Authorities Pension Fund Committees

 •Underperformance of the WPP's 
Investment Managers.
 •Adverse and unforeseen economic 

conditions and market events.     
 •Inappropriate strategic and regional asset 

allocations. 

A significant strain on the WPP's 
key stakeholders, the Constituent 
Authorities. This may result in a 
requirement for greater employer 
contributions or a fall in funding 
level.

The Operator/ The 
Investment Manager 

 •Investment Manager's business model, 
internal controls and/ or the external 
oversight of the Investment Manager fails.

Financial loss to assets held within 
the WPP.

The Operator/ The 
Investment Manager 

The Operator/The Investment Manager facilitate:                                                                          
                                                                     
 •Ongoing monitoring of investment managers   
 •Ques oning managers on their internal controls, 

external regulation, succession/retention policies  
 •Engagement with Investment Managers and the 

Investment Manager industry 
 •Maintaining a shortlist of suitable replacement 

Managers

Financial

Financial Short Term Q4 2020

The Operator/ OWG/ 
Oversight Advisor

 •Robust procurement process overseen by The 
Operator                                                     
 •Annual review of custodian prepared by The 

Operator and presented to OWG      
 •Analysis of Investment Manager Records vs 

Custodian Records             
 •Monitor custodian performance on annual basis
 •Custodian regulated by FCA    
 •Receipt of annual controls reports from 

Custodian's External Auditors

Current

👍 N/A

OWG

Long Term 

Current

👍 N/A

OWG

I.3

Failure of appointed 
Custodian may lead to 

assets not being properly 
managed resulting in 

financial and/or 
information loss in relation 

to investment assets.

 •Inaccurate recording of asset valua ons 
and transactions. 
 •Unsa sfactory safeguarding of assets.    
 •External and internal controls fail to 

prevent fraud or misappropriation. 
 •Custodian fails and exists the market, 

potentially leading to stranded assets.

Financial loss to assets held within 
the WPP.

I.4

The WPP does not receive 
or seek expert investment 

advice  when required. 

 •An external adviser provides inappropriate 
or unsatisfactory advice to WPP.       
 •WPP ignores appropriate advice provided 

by expert advisers.   
 •WPP fails to seek to expert advise.

Inappropriate decisions are 
implemented which may harm 
investment performance.

Oversight Advisor

The Oversight Advisor will 
report back to the OWG.

Financial Long Term

Target

Q4 2020

N/A

Financial Short Term

Target

Q4 2020

OWG/ JGC/ Oversight 
Advisor

 •Robust procurement processes                   
 •Ongoing training for JGC and OWG members 
 •Oversight Advisor in place to oversee Investment 

Advise & decision-making process     
 •Engagement with other LGPS Pools and Funds to 

cross verify suitability of advice  

Current

👎

The WPP Oversight Advisor will develop a means of 
overseeing the WPP’s Investment Manager and the 
advice that they provide to the WPP. 

P
age 108



Current Situation

Cause of Risk Implications of Risk
Risk Owner & Imapct 

Period
Current Risk Controls Severity Probability Score Current Status Action Required

Responsible Party & 
Review Date

Progress Report/ Comments

2 2 4

2 1 2

4 2 8

4 2 8

4 2 8

4 1 4

4 2 8

4 1 4

I.6

The WPP is subjected to 
counterparty risk

 •The WPP fails to monitor their 
counterparty exposure and the probability 
of counterparty defaults. 
 •A suitable escala on process to deal with 

excess counterparty exposure is not put in 
place.

I.5

The WPP fails to challenge 
Manager fees, value for 
money and mandated 

objectives.

 •Lack of informa on and transparency from 
Investment Managers.        
 •Inability to check and challenge 

Investment Managers and benchmark them 
relative to market competitors.

Inability to deliver value for 
money to the WPP's stakeholders.

Oversight Advisor

The Oversight Advisor will 
report back to the OWG.

Financial Medium Term

Target

Q4 2020

OWG/ The Operator/ 
The Investment 

Manager/ Oversight 
Advisor

 •Ongoing monitoring of investment managers fees 
 •Ques on The Operator, the Investment Manager 

and Investment Managers on their fees
 •Demand Transparency from Investment Mangers, 

the Investment Manager and The Operator on fees

Current

👎

The WPP Oversight Advisor is currently wording 
with the OWG to develop the WPP's Investment 
Manager reporting, fee benchmarking is part of 
this development plan. 

The Operator/ 
Investment Manager

First Bi-Annual review process 
due in Q4 2020.

Financial

 

OWG

N/A

Financial Short Term

Target

Q4 2020

Financial loss to assets held within 
the WPP, potential legal costs, 
reputation risk.

 OWG/ The Operator/ 
The Investment 

Manager/ The Custodian

 •Ongoing monitoring of counterparty exposure    
 •Ques on The Operator, The Investment Manager, 

Investment Managers and Custodian on the WPP's 
level of counterparty exposure

Current

👍

I.7

The WPP puts in place sub-
optimal sub-funds.

 •Insufficient me and resources are 
allocated to the design and development of 
sub-funds.        
 •Cons tuent Authori es do not effec vely 

articulate their requirements and/ or the 
WPP fails to account for Constituent 
Authority requirements.           
 •Value for money and/ or cost savings are 

not given adequate consideration.  
 •Sub-funds with insufficient scale to 

achieve cost saving are launched.   
 •Manager fee nego a ons are ineffec ve

The WPP provides sub-funds that 
do not deliver value for money/ 
cost saving and or the investment 
requirements of the Constituent 
Authorities

 OWG/ The Operator/ 
The Investment 

Manager/ Oversight 
Advisor

•Numerous advisors used in the formulation of sub-
funds 
•Oversight advisor in place to oversee investment 
strategy and sub-fund design
•Numerous checks and balances on the decision-
making process and approval of invest strategy and 
sub-funds         
•Cost benefit analysis is carried out prior to each 
sub-fund launch            
•Use of the Investment Manager's scale and the 
WPP's scale to negotiate the best Manager fees 
possible
•Frequent consultation with Constituent 
Authorities on their requirements  
•Asset held outside of sub-fund if their inclusion in 
the sub-fund is cost inefficient

Current

👎

The Operator and Investment Manager will 
formulate a mechanism for evaluating whether 
existing sub-funds remain optimal and aligned to 
Constituent Authority requirements, this will be 
done on at least an annual basis. 

Risk Detail Scoring Management and Mointoring

Risk & Nature of Risk

A progress update will be 
provided in conjunction with the 
annual review of the WPP's 
Responsible Investement Policy.

Financial Long Term

Target

Q4 2020

Long Term

Target

Q4 2020

I.8

The WPP fails to 
adequately account for 

climate change, climate risk 
and ESG factors.

 •Lack of knowledge on the impacts of 
Climate Change, Risk and ESG Factors.    
 •Lack of knowledge on how the impacts of 

Climate Change, Risk and ESG Factors can 
be managed. 
 •Poor a endance at training events.  

Financial loss to assets held within 
the WPP and potential for 
stranded  assets. OWG/ The Operator/ 

The Investment 
Manager/ Oversight 

Advisor

 •Development of suitable Climate Change, Climate 
Risk and ESG reporting metrics  
 •Appointment of a proxy vo ng and engagement 

provider, who engages with managers and 
companies on how they manage Climate Change, 
Climate Risk and ESG factors  
 •Publica on of a Responsible Investment policy 

and Climate Risk Policy  
 •Constant engagement and challenging of 

Managers on how they account for Climate Risk/ 
Change and ESG factors     
 •Development of Sub-funds that will allow 

Constituent Authorities to manage their Climate 
risk Exposure                                                      
 •Annual Climate Change, Climate Risk or ESG 

related training event on the WPP Training Plan

Current

👎

The WPP is working with the Operator, Investment 
Manager, Underlying Managers and Oversight 
Advisor to enhance the WPP's reporting on 
Responsible Investment and Climate Risk. 
Consideration is also been given to whether 
additional third-party suppliers are required.

OWG

P
age 109



Current Situation

Cause of Risk Implications of Risk
Risk Owner & Imapct 

Period
Current Risk Controls Severity Probability Score Current Status Action Required

Responsible Party & 
Review Date

Progress Report/ Comments

5 2 10

5 1 5

Risk Detail Scoring

I.9

The WPP fails to facilitate 
investment solutions that 

enable the Constituent 
Authorities to meet their 
investment strategy and 

objectives.

Management and Mointoring

Risk & Nature of Risk

👎

An annual consultation questionnaire will be 
developed and issued to Constituent Authorities. 
The questionaire will seek to determine 
Constituent Authorities' individual investment 
requirements and longer-term aspirations. Oversight Advisor

Oversight Advisor to draft the 
questionaire, which will be 
issued by the HA.

Operational/ Reputational Long Term

Target

Q4 2020

 •Insufficient me and resources are 
allocated to engaging with and 
understandign Constituent Authority needs 
and requirements.
 •Cons tuent Authori es do not effec vely 

articulate their requirements and/ or the 
WPP fails to account for Constituent 
Authority requirements.           
 •Sub-funds are not designed to Cons tuent 

Authority requirements.         
 •Sub-funds are not flexible enough or able 

to change to better meet Constieutn 
Authority requirements

The Constituent Authorities refuse 
to make use of the investment 
solution provided by the WPP. 
Consequently, the WPP fails to 
Pool assets, which may lead to 
government intervention and or 
the collapse of the WPP. 

 OWG/ The Operator/ 
The Investment 

Manager/ Oversight 
Advisor

 •The development of further sub-funds is a 
prioritised item within the WPP’s business plan.
 • Frequent consulta on with Cons tuent 

Authorities on their requirements
 • Consulta on with the Cons tuent Authori es on 

the ongoing suitability of existing sub-funds. 
 •Numerous advisors used in the formula on of sub-

funds      
 •Oversight advisor in place to oversee investment 

strategy and sub-fund design 
 •Numerous checks and balances on the decision-

making process and approval of invest strategy and 
sub-funds           

Current

P
age 110



Governance & Regulation Risk

Current Situation

Cause of Risk Implications of Risk
Risk Owner & Imapct 

Period
Current Risk Controls Severity Probability Score Current Status Action Required

Responsible Party & 
Review Date

Progress Report/ Comments

5 3 15

5 2 10

3 2 6

3 2 6

4 2 8

4 1 4

Management and MointoringScoring

Risk & Nature of Risk

Current

Risk Detail

G.2

The WPP becomes overly 
dependant on a  single or 
limited decisions maker or 

decision making body.

 •A number of decision makers or a decision-
making body has a knowledge gap which 
limits their ability to contribute/ influence 
the decision-making process.   
 •Resources and other commitments limit 

the availability and input of relevant 
decision makers and decision-making 
bodies.
 •A number of decision makers or a decision-

making body is given or gains excessive 
decision-making power. 
 •Unjus fiable levels of decision-making 

power concentration

The WPP is inefficiently managed. 
Unsuitable decisions are made 
due to a lack of challenge / 
debate/ input and variety of views.

WPP Personnel/ 
Oversight Advisor

Further monitoring checks will 
be put in place if required.

Operational  / Reputational Medium Term

Target

Q1 2021

 •Ensure sufficient training takes place 
 •Maintain a mechanism for monitoring recent 

regulations changes and progression toward 
meeting the new requirements               
 •Engagement with relevant regulatory bodies (such 

as Scheme Advisory Board, Pension Regulator and 
MHCLG)           
 •Appointment of an expert legal advisor  

Current

👎

The HA will include 'Regulation and Governance 
Updates' as a regular OWG agenda item (under the 
Host Authority Update). The HA will consult with 
either the MHCLG or other LGPS pools on a 
quarterly basis to ensure they are aware or 
ongoing legislation and regulation developments/ 
changes. The WPP will continue to await further 
Pooling guidance.

OWG

G.1

WPP fails to comply with 
relevant regulation and 

LGPS guidance.

 •WPP is unaware and/ or ignores relevant 
regulation, guidance and recent updates.
 •No means of monitoring regulatory 

compliance. 
 •Mis-interpreta on of how regula on and 

guidance applies to WPP.
 •Insufficient resources to meet guidance 

and regulatory requirements, this includes 
Pooling Guidance.

Potential Fines, loss of sovereignty 
and a negative impact on the 
WPP's reputation.

HA/ OWG/ Oversight 
Advisor/ Legal Advisor

N/A

Operational Long Term

Target

Q1 2021

 •Ensure sufficient training takes place 
 •Appointment of an Oversight Advisor to advise on 

the WPP's governance structure
 •Procurement and use of external advisors and 

suppliers that add inform/ provide guidance and 
bring a diversity of views to the decision-making 
process 
 •Use of a governance structure that ensure 

sufficient scrutiny prior to decisions being 
approved             
 •Adop on of a governance structure that does not 

allow high levels of decision-making concertation
 •Annual review of WPP's resource requirements
 •Bi-Annual mee ng with Pension Boards held, 

which provide an invaluable source of knowledge 
and variety of views

Current

👍 N/A

Oversight Advisor

 •Monitoring of current expenditure and remaining 
budget                                      
 •Engagement with relevant suppliers to ascertain 

whether fees are due to change and/or in line with 
expectation

👎

The WPP will increase the frequency of its actual vs 
expected budget reviews from annually to 
quarterly. The WPP is also developing a mechanism 
for the efficient monitoring of Manager fees.

HA

The HA will provide an update 
to the OWG.

Target

Q1 2021

G.3

The WPP fails to adhere to 
its pre-agreed budget.

 •Inappropriate es ma on of required 
budget. 
 •Failure to effec vely manage costs of WPP 

activities and external provider fees.      
 •Failure to maintain a means of monitoring 

expenditure and remaining budget.    

The WPP fails to meet its pre-
agreed budget and/or has 
insufficient budget to pay 
suppliers and or to fund activates.

HA/ JGC

Financial / Reputational Short Term

P
age 111



Current Situation

Cause of Risk Implications of Risk
Risk Owner & Imapct 

Period
Current Risk Controls Severity Probability Score Current Status Action Required

Responsible Party & 
Review Date

Progress Report/ Comments

2 2 4

2 2 4

4 2 8

4 2 8

3 2 6

3 1 3

4 2 8

4 2 8

G.5

The WPP fails to provide 
suitable and accurate 

accounts by the statutory 
deadline.

 •Lack of adequate planning for closure of 
accounts.                 
 •Lack of resources leads to late or 

inadequate accounts.      
 •Lack of sufficient knowledge/ exper se.
 •JGC approval cannot be provided due to 

certain circumstances.

The WPP's reputation is negatively 
impacted. Potential referral to the 
Scheme Advisory Board and the 
MHCLG. HA/ JGC

Risk Detail Scoring Management and Mointoring

Risk & Nature of Risk

N/A

Financial / Reputational Medium Term

Target

Q1 2021

 •Ongoing training on best prac ce 
 •Relevant WPP personnel are expected to complete 

GDPR training                        
 •Adop on of a secure documents portal to hold 

relevant records and documentations 
 •Legal Advisor appointed to provide guidance on 

relevant regulation and interpretation of this 
regulation                       
 •External audit carried out                              
 •Suitable internal controls in place at the Host 

Authority

Current

👍 N/A

HA

G.4

The WPP fails to maintain 
suitable records, 

documentation is not filed 
in a suitable manner and  

personnel data is not 
stored securely.

 •Lack of adequate procedures.        
 •Insufficient knowledge of best prac ce in 

regards to how to store personal data, 
documentation and records.         
 •A lack of suitable systems and IT solu ons 

to facilitate and assist in the storing and 
maintenance of personal data, 
documentation and records.

The WPP loses valuable data and 
intellectual property. The WPP's 
reputation is negatively impacted. 
The WPP is subject to financial 
penalties or fines. HA

N/A

 Reputational Medium Term

Target

Q1 2021

 •Ongoing training                                                  
 •Timetabled audit process     
 •Qualified Audit opinion sought   
 •Engagement with external audit to discuss 

deadlines and forward planning     
 •Appropriate level of exper se in place at Host 

Authority

Current

👍 N/A

HA

G.7

The WPP is unable to 
operate efficiently or carry 

out its duties due to 
uncontrollable events.

 •WPP Personnel and/or key suppliers are 
unable to carry out work due to fire, 
extreme weather, epidemics. 
 •Key system, IT systems, communica on 

methods and portals fail.

The WPP is unable to work 
efficiently, required work is not 
completed, key decisions are 
unable to be made. Potential 
financial loss to assets held within 
the WPP. Alongside, potential 
reputational risk or referral to 
Scheme Advisory Board, Pension 
Regulator or the MHCLG

WPP Personnel/ 
Suppliers and Advisors

The implementation of the WPP 
Conflict of Interest Policy should 
commerce by the start of Q3 
2020.

Operational  / Reputational Medium Term

Target

Q1 2021

 •Declara on of conflict is an ongoing agenda item 
at the Joint Governance Committee       
 •Conflict of interest policy in development 
 •Training of how conflict of interests can be 

managed        
 •Engagement with relevant bodies such as the 

Scheme Advisory Board on best practice and 
relevant guidance

Current

👎

Managing Conflict of Interest will be covered as 
part of the WPP's 2020/2021 training plan. 
Additionally, the WPP Conflict of Interest Policy will 
be finalised, approved and implemented by the 
end of the 2020/2021 financial year.

HA/ Oversight Advisor

G.6

The WPP does not manage 
conflicts of interests.

 •Failure of WPP Personnel to state any 
potential conflicts.                 
 •No policy in place which outlines how 

conflicts of interests should be managed.     
 •Inability of WPP personnel to disassociate 

personnel interest from the interests of the 
WPP's stakeholders.

Inappropriate decisions are made 
that are not in the best interest of 
the WPP's stakeholders. The 
WPP's reputation is negatively 
impacted. Potential referral to the 
Scheme Advisory Board and the 
MHCLG.

WPP Personnel/ 
Suppliers and Advisors

The WPP has continued to work 
effectively despite COVID-19.  
JGC meeting can now be held 
virtually.

Financial / Reputational Short Term

Target

Q2 2021

 •Host Authority has business con nuity/ disaster 
recovery plan in place.                   
 •Majority of Personnel and Advisors are able to 

work remotely                   
 •Numerous communica ons mechanisms in place
 •WPP Personnel are located across several 

geographical locations

Current

👍 N/A

HA

P
age 112



Current Situation

Cause of Risk Implications of Risk
Risk Owner & Imapct 

Period
Current Risk Controls Severity Probability Score Current Status Action Required

Responsible Party & 
Review Date

Progress Report/ Comments

4 2 8

4 1 4

5 2 10

5 2 10

4 3 12

4 2 8

Risk Detail Scoring Management and Mointoring

Risk & Nature of Risk

G.8

The WPP's governance 
arrangements result in 

inefficient management 
and decision making.

 •Failure to account for relevant guidance in 
relation to good governance/ best practice.
 •Inability to follow exis ng governance 

structure and protocols.
 •Inefficient delega on of du es and 

resources.
 •Governance structure does not allow for 

sufficient time/ resources and debate on 
key decisions and matters.

The WPP is unable to work 
efficiently, required work is not 
completed, key decisions are 
unable to be made. Potential 
financial loss to assets held within 
the WPP. Alongside, potential 
reputational risk or referral to 
Scheme Advisory Board, Pension 
Regulator or the MHCLG.

OWG/ JGC/ Oversight 
Advisor

 •Governance Structure in place and codified in the 
Inter Authority Agreement 
 •Use of ered governance structure to assist in the 

prioritisation of key decisions   
 •Oversight Advisor in place to provide advise on 

governance structure 
 •Engagement with relevant bodies on good 

governance guidance and best practice
 •Annual resource assessment to ensure governance 

structure can be adhered to  
 •Ongoing review of governance structure

Current

👎

The Oversight Advisor will consider the suitability 
of the WPP’s governance arrangements while 
formulating the WPP Governance Manual. The IAA 
is also due to be reviewed in 2021/2022.
The Oversight Advisor will review how the diversity 
and volume of input and opinions from the WPP’s 
internal stakeholders can be increased, the findings 
will be discussed with the OWG. 
The WPP will develop a ‘decision, owner and 
deadline’ matrix for inclusion in all of its meeting 
packs. The WPP is reviewing the possability of 
Scheme member represenation on the JGC.

Oversight Advisor

The Oversight Advisor will 
report back to the OWG.

Operational  / Reputational 
/ Financial

Long Term

Target

Q2 2021

G.9

Difference of opinion/ or 
views within the WPP can 

not be reconciled.

• Different decision-making bodies are 
unable to come to an agreement. 
Conflicting interests and priorities of 
Constituent Authorities.  
•Governance structure does not provide a 
mechanism or forum by which opinions and 
differences can be reconciled.
• Sub-optimal number of decisions makers/ 
opinion

The WPP is unable to agree on key 
decisions leading to delays, 
inefficiencies and alienation or 
breakup of stakeholders. Potential 
financial loss to assets held within 
the WPP and/ or reputational risk.

WPP Personnel/ 
Suppliers and Advisors

 •Strong mean of communica on between decision 
makers (and Constituent Authorities)          
 •Codified set of unanimously agreed/ united 

objectives and beliefs           
 •Regular scheduled mee ngs, and ad hoc mee ngs 

if required, to facilitate the sharing and 
reconciliation of views 
 •Oversight Advisor in place to provide advice on 

governance structure
 •Engagement with relevant bodies on good 

governance guidance and best practice
 •Ongoing review of governance structure 
 •Democra c decision-making process in place 
 •Clear escala on process in place for obtain 

consent if mutual agreement cannot be reached

Current

👍 N/A

OWG

G.10

WPP suppliers fail to 
deliver on their contractual 

commitments.

 •Lack of a suitable supplier monitoring 
framework.                   
 •Insufficient compe on amongst 

suppliers.                                             
 •Unsuitable/ undeliverable contractual 

terms agreed.           
 •Poor communica on with suppliers on the 

WPP's requirements and expectations.

The WPP work in progress goes 
uncompleted or is delayed. The 
requirements of the WPP's 
stakeholders are not met. The 
WPP makes inappropriate 
decisions which could result in 
financial  loss, inefficiencies, 
reputational risk.

Oversight Advisor/ OWG

N/A

Operational  / Reputational 
/ Financial

Medium Term

Target

Q2 2021

Where appropriate Advisors will 
assist the OWG in the 
formulation of these lists.

Operational  / Reputational 
/ Financial

Medium Term

Target

Q2 2021

 •Legal Advisor in place to review contractual terms 
and commitments 
 •Regular service delivery mee ngs held 
 •Regular procurement and reappointment exercises 

carried out to ensure competition   
 •The WPP has formulated contracts that have 

natural break or exit points and minimal exit fees.   

Current

👎

The OWG will seek to formulate a shortlist of 
‘potential replacement suppliers’ that could be 
appointed if required. This will reduce the impact 
of this risk by accelerating the timeframe for the 
appointment of a replacement supplier. OWG

P
age 113



Current Situation

Cause of Risk Implications of Risk
Risk Owner & Imapct 

Period
Current Risk Controls Severity Probability Score Current Status Action Required

Responsible Party & 
Review Date

Progress Report/ Comments

4 3 12

4 2 8

5 3 15

5 2 10

Risk Detail Scoring Management and Mointoring

Risk & Nature of Risk

G.11

WPP suppliers fail to enact 
the WPP's decisions in a 

timely and effective 
manner.

 •Poor communica on with suppliers on the 
WPP's requirements and expectations. 

  •Lack of resources at suppliers.       
 •Relevant suppliers have overwhelming 

and/or conflicting prioritises. 
 •Lack of engagement or a endance from 

relevant suppliers.
 •Decision made are not picked up in a 

timely manner.

The WPP work in progress goes 
uncompleted or is delayed, which 
could result in financial  loss or 
inefficiencies. The requirements of 
the WPP's stakeholders are not 
met. 

Oversight Advisor/ OWG

 •Regular service delivery mee ngs held 
 •Regular procurement and reappointment exercises 

carried out to ensure competition     
  •Designated Oversight Advisor in place   
 •Intensive engagement protocols with relevant 

suppliers 

Current

👎

The OWG will consider this risk while undertaking 
its annual review of the WPP's Communication 
Policy. The Oversight Advisor will review how the 
communication of timescales and the importance 
of actions, projects and activities can be more 
effective conveyed to relevant suppliers. The WPP 
will develop a ‘decision, owner and deadline’ 
matrix for inclusion in all of its meeting packs.

OWG & Oversight 
Advisor

The Oversight Advisor will draft 
a ‘decision, owner and deadline’ 
matrix for the OWG’s 
consideration. 

Operational  / Financial

The Oversight Advisor will 
provide assistance to the OWG.

Financial / Operational Short Term

Target

Q2 2021

Medium Term

Target

Q2 2021

G.12

The  WPP's Operator fails 
to deliver on its contractual 
obligations or stops 
providing Operator services 
due to existing the market 
or regulatory restrictions.

 •Operator is not adequately resourced. 
 •Operator does not put sufficient 

performance/risk reporting systems in 
place. 
 •The Operator does not have the 

resources/ expertise to carry out Manager 
monitoring, fee negotiations, facilitate 
vehicles & establishment services.
 •The Operator does not put in place 

sufficient checks and balances to ensure 
compliance with all relevant regulations.
 •The Operator lacks the ability or 

regulatory approval to provide Depositary 
and Custody services (via ACS).
 •Insufficient monitoring of appointed 

entities for fund administration & transfer 
agency (Northern Trust).
 •The Operator fails to put in place suitable 

Risk Management (RM), including: RM 
policy, procedures and mitigation strategies.
 •The Operator is not adequately resourced 

to provide adequate relationship 
management and service delivery.

The WPP assets held within the 
Operator ACS are put at risk. A 
number of the WPP's contracts 
are broken, as these are currently 
mandated via the Operator. The 
WPP is unable to work efficiently, 
required work is not completed, 
sub-funds are unable to be 
managed or launched. 

Oversight Advisor/HA/ 
OWG/ Legal Advisor

 •Designated Operator Oversight Advisor in place
 •Intensive engagement protocols with Operator
 •Operator Oversight Framework currently in 

development 
 •Engagement with the wider Operator market (and 

other suitable suppliers) is built into the WPP 
business plan
 •The WPP has formulated contracts that have 

natural break or exit points and minimal exit fees

Current

👎

The OWG will develop an ‘impact limitation 
procedure’ which could be enacted if the Operator 
were to exit the market or if an immediate 
replacement needed to be appointed. The OWG is 
continuing to monitor any developments resulting 
from the FCA's review of the ACD Operator market. 
The OWG recognises the resource strain this review 
places on the Operator.

OWG

P
age 114



Training & Resources Risk
Current Situation

Cause of Risk Implications of Risk
Risk Owner & Imapct 

Period
Current Risk Controls Severity Probability Score Current Status Action Required

Responsible Party & 
Review Date

Progress Report/ Comments

3 2 6

3 1 3

4 1 4

4 1 4

4 1 4

4 1 4

5 2 10

5 1 5

Risk Detail Scoring Management and Mointoring

Risk & Nature of Risk

T.1

The WPP fails to maintain 
and foster appropriate 

expertise and knowledge 
amongst relevant personnel

 •Knowledge gap of new or exis ng 
personnel.               
 •Unsa sfactory Training program.  
 •Poor a endance at training events.

Knowledge gaps result in 
ineffective action, inability to 
deliver on responsibilities and 
inappropriate decision making. WPP Personnel

 •Ensure sufficient training takes place 
 •Maintain a mechanism for accessing training 

requirements  
 •Ensure that new personnel receive appropriate 

training at the outset of their duties                     
 •Publica on of WPP Annual Training Plan           
 •Outsourcing training requirements to specialists 

when required                        
 •Outsourcing tasks to expert advisors when 

required level of expertise cannot be met internally 

Current

👎

The WPP will reduce the probability of this risk by 
putting in place an induction process for new WPP 
personnel. The WPP will also commit to delivering 
at least 4 training events each year. OWG

The HA is considering how 
training events can be facilitate 
given the COVID-19 outbreak. A 
WPP induction procedure is also 
being formulated.

Operational  / Reputational 
/ Financial

N/A

Operational  / Reputational 
/ Financial

Medium Term

Target

Q3 2021

Medium Term

Target

Q3 2021

T.2

The WPP makes 
inappropriate or untimely 

decisions.

 •Lack of resources.     
 •Relevant WPP personnel have 

overwhelming and/or conflicting prioritises. 
 •Lack of engagement or a endance from 

relevant personnel.                    
 •Decision made are not picked up internally 

in a timely manner.

The WPP makes inappropriate 
decisions. Delays in decision 
making reduces the effectiveness 
of decisions and/ or leads to a 
negative impact or investment 
returns.

WPP Personnel

 •Decisions made are noted and assigned to 
relevant personnel       
 •Mee ng a endance and absentees are noted at 

the commencement of each meeting                        
 •Annual review of resource requirements 
 •Use of external suppliers when addi onal 

resources are required     
 •Business Plan and Work Plan in place to priori se 

key decisions and activities

Current

👍 N/A

OWG & Oversight 
Advisor

T.4

Key Personnel Risk at Host 
Authority

 •Certain people leave the HA.          
 •HA fails to put in place effec ve succession 

plans.
 •Roles and responsibili es of the HA are 

too heavily concetrated amongst a limited 
body of individuals.

HA is unable to provide support to 
the WPP. No Action or ineffective 
action is taken leading to financial 
loss or inefficiencies. Key 
knbolwedge and existing 
relationships are lost.

OWG

N/A

Operational  / Reputational 
/ Financial

Medium Term

Target

Q3 2021

 •Timely iden fica on of the WPP’s requirements
 •If a resource requirement is iden fied, then the 

relevant resourcing/ procurement exercises are 
carried out
 •Use of the Na onal Framework   
 •Regular market engagement to ensure that WPP 

remains a competitive and attractive employer/ 
client

Current

👍 N/A

OWG

T.3

The WPP fails to attract, 
appoint and retain 

personnel, suppliers and 
providers.

 •Inappropriate decisions are made due to a 
lack of input and opinions from relevant 
personnel, adviser and/ or suppliers.
 •The WPP makes inappropriate decisions 

due to a lack of information/ knowledge/ 
advise.
 •The WPP has insufficient resources to 

carry out its work and deliver on its duty to 
stakeholders.

The WPP is unable to meet  the 
requirements of its key 
stakeholders. The WPP makes 
inappropriate decisions which 
could result in financial  loss, 
inefficiencies, reputational risk.

WPP Personnel

This risk will be raised at the 
next OWG so that additional 
controls can be put in place 
ahead of the next review of this 
risk in Q3 2021. 

Operational Short Term

Target

Q3 2021

 •Ensure sufficient training and succession planning 
takes place 
 •Maintain a mechanism for accessing training 

requirements amongst existing HA Personnel 
 •Ensure that new personnel receive appropriate 

 training at the outset of their du es                     

Current

👎

OWG to consider what action would be taken if key 
personnel at the HA left and consider what 
additional control could be put in place to reduce 
the probability to key personnel risk and its impact 
on business continuity. 

OWG

P
age 115



Communication Risk
Current Situation

Cause of Risk Implications of Risk
Risk Owner & Imapct 

Period
Current Risk Controls Severity Probability Score Current Status Action Required

Responsible Party & 
Review Date

Progress Report/ Comments

4 2 8

4 1 4

3 1 3

3 1 3

3 1 3

3 1 3

Risk Detail Scoring Management and Mointoring

Risk & Nature of Risk

C.1

The WPP fails to effectively 
communicate and engage 
with internal stakeholders.

• The WPP internal communication 
startegies are ineffective or not adhered to.

Inappropriate decisions are made 
due to a lack of input and 
opinions from key stakeholders 
(e.g.  views and requirements of 
Constituent Authorities). The WPP 
makes inappropriate decisions 
which could result in financial 
loss, inefficiencies, reputational 
risk, alienation and a loss of 
engagement from key 
stakeholders.

WPP Personnel

 •Formula on of a WPP communica on policy that 
covers internal communication 
 •Use of a documents portal for internal uses             
 •Use of mul ple communica on channels 
 •Regular engagement with internal stakeholders 

(e.g. meetings, bi-weekly calls and emails)

Current

👎

The OWG will review how the diversity and volume 
of input and opinions from the WPP’s internal 
stakeholders can be increased, the findings will be 
discussed. This includes the consideration of 
Scheme Member representation on the JGC. 

OWG

The OWG will consider this risk 
alongside its annual review of 
the WPP's Communication 
Policy.

Reputational / Operational Medium Term

Target

Q3 2021

C.2

The WPP fails to effectively 
communicate and engage 
with external stakeholders.

 •The WPP fails to ar culate its beliefs and 
objectives to external parties.
 •The WPP is not forthcoming or ac ve in 

seeking engagement with relevant external 
parties.
 •The WPP Communica on Policy is not 

effective or far reaching enough.
 •The WPP doesn't have sufficient resources 

to carry out the required communication 
and engagement activities.

The WPP fails to incorporate 
guidance and advise for relevant 
external parties. External Parties 
perception of the WPP is 
unreflective and harmful. The 
WPP's reputation is negatively 
impacted. 

WPP Personnel

 •Formula on of a WPP communica on policy that 
covers external communication
 •Development of a WPP website
 •Use of external communica on channels and 

press releases       
 •Regular engagement with external stakeholders 

(e.g. The MHCLG, SAB, Pension Regulator 
Conference attendance)                                            
 •Annual WPP update published

Current

👍 N/A

OWG

C.3

Advice and relevant 
information is not 

presented in a way that 
aids decisions making.

 •Advice and informa on is not adequately 
targeted to the relevant audience.
 •The format and presenta on of advice and 

information is not well designed to the 
audience. 
 •The intended audience and/ or scope of 

advice & information is unclear. 
 •Insufficient me or resources is given to 

the formulation and/ or consideration of 
advice/ information.

The WPP makes inappropriate 
decisions due to a lack of 
information and/ or advice. 
Inappropriate decisions result in 
inefficiencies/ financial risk and  
reputational risk

WPP Personnel/ The 
Operator/ Investment 
Manager/ Oversight 

Advisor/ Other Advisors 
and Suppliers

The OWG will consider this risk 
alongside its annual review of 
the WPP's Communication 
Policy.

Reputational / Operational Medium Term

Target

Q3 2021

The Oversight Advisor will 
review this risk ahead of the end 
of the 2020/2021 financial year.

Operational  / Reputational 
/ Financial

Long Term

Target

Q3 2021

 •WPP personnel, in par cular decision makers, are 
actively encouraged to provide feedback on the 
relevance and presentation of advice and 
information 
 •Advice & informa on is normally presented in at 

least two formats (verbal and written)      
 •Solely verbal updates are kept to a minimum 
 •Sufficient me and opportunity is given to the 

asking of clarification questions
 •Dra  advice or informa on is normal shared with 

the HA, for a sensibility check, prior to being shared 
or presented 
 •The WPP's governance structure allows for 

multiple checks and balance prior to decisions 
being made

Current

👍 N/A

Oversight Advisor

P
age 116



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

SUBJECT

OPERATOR UPDATE

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To receive a presentation from the Operator on the progress of the Wales 
Pension Partnership

REASONS: 

The operator to provide an update on the following key areas:
 

 Current Fund Holdings
 Fund Launch Progress  
 Corporate Update and Engagement

Report Author:
Chris Moore

Designation:
Director of Corporate Services

Carmarthenshire County 
Council

Tel No. 01267 224160 

E. Mail: 
CMoore@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 117

Agenda Item 11



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

OPERATOR UPDATE 

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

A report from the Operator providing an update on the progress and milestones 
of the following Sub Funds: 

 Tranche 1 – Global Equity
 Tranche 2 – UK Equity
 Tranche 3 – Fixed Income
 Tranche 4 – Emerging Markets
 Tranche 5 – Private Markets

Also, a Corporate and Engagement update including the engagement protocol 
and key meeting dates.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Page 118



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

Page 119



CONSULTATIONS

Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Page 120



Link Asset Services • 

Wales Pension Partnership
Joint Governance Committee

17th July 2020

P
age 121



Link Asset Services • 

LF Wales PP Fund Snapshot (March & May 2020)

Gwynedd
15%

RCT
52%

Dyfed
28%

Powys
5%

Global Growth Equity

Gwynedd
16%

RCT
14%

Swansea
48%

Torfaen
18%

Clwyd
4%

Global Opportunities Equity

Cardiff
34%

Torfaen
66%

UK Opportunities Equity

Fund AUM (29/5/2020) Launch date

Global Growth £2,283,194,498 6th Feb 2019

Global 

Opportunities

£2,159,482,284 14th Feb 2019

UK Opportunities £542,793,734 10th Oct 2019

2

Key:

▪ Dyfed

▪ Powys

▪ Gwynedd

▪ RCT

▪ Torfaen

▪ Clwyd

▪ Swansea

▪ Cardiff

Fund AUM (31/3/2020) Launch date

Global Growth £1,961,892,648 6th Feb 2019

Global 

Opportunities

£1,881,872,223 14th Feb 2019

UK Opportunities £480,052,962 10th Oct 2019

P
age 122



Fund Launch Progress Report

Tranche 3, 4 & 5 updates

P
age 123



Link Asset Services • 

Open Launch Activity

4

Key Achievements & Updates

Strategic developments

Overview Status Progress in period
Planned Launch 

date

Tranche 5:

Private Markets 

strategy 

development

▪ Development of a WPP Private Market strategy 

including a road map for the potential creation of 

a standalone Private Market sub fund 
▪

▪ Private Markets session held on 23rd January 2020 

incl. Russell Investments presentation on Impact 

Investing

▪ Russell Investments paper to outline launch 

proposal based on legacy asset and strategic plan 

of each participating Authority discussed within 

Working Group

January to June  

2021

Fund Launches Progress

Overview Status Progress in period
Planned Launch 

date

Tranche 3:

Fixed Income sub-

fund launch

▪ Establishment of 5 Fixed Income sub-funds 

within the ACS 

▪ FCA approval received and BlackRock 

appointed as transition manager

▪

▪ April launch date revised and agreed by all parties 

for 27th and 30th July 2020 as a result of COVID-19

▪ Operational setups continue to track green

▪ BlackRock have re-engaged the legacy managers 

to obtain up to date data for the transition report

27th and 30th July 

2020 

Tranche 4: 

Emerging Markets 

sub-fund launch

▪ Emerging Market fund to be created under the 

Enhanced Portfolio Implementation model with a 

carbon reducing overlay
▪

▪ JGC agreed manager structure proposal March 

2020

▪ Link internal governance process completed

▪ Prospectus being worked through with Russell 

Investments and Eversheds before review by WPP

Q1 2021

Key:

▪ On track

▪ Progressing with delays

▪ On hold / progressing with 

major delays

P
age 124



LFS Corporate Update & Engagement

P
age 125



Link Asset Services • 6

Link - Pension Committee attendance in 

period: 

• Gwynedd – 16th January 2020 

Link - Pension Committee attendance in 

next quarter : 

• Cardiff – 16th June 2020 (VC)

Link attendance at OWG/JGC meetings in 

period:

• OWG 31st January 2020 (Cardiff)

• JGC 12th March 2020 (Powys)

Link attendance at OWG/JGC meetings in 

next quarter:

• JGC 17th July 2020 (VC)

Other meetings in period

• Host Authority update – occurs bi-weekly

• Working group - occurs bi-weekly

• Private Markets sub group – 23rd January 

2020

• WPP Training Day – 21st February 2020 

Other meetings in next quarter

• Host Authority update – occurs bi-weekly

• Working group - occurs bi-weekly

Key Q1 and future WPP Engagement

LFS Corporate Update & Engagement

COVID-19 update

• LFS are planning for the safe and progressive transition of our people back to the office after the UK Government announced the easing of 

COVID-19 restrictions and remain committed to continuing undisrupted, quality service delivery for the WPP as well as ensuring the 

ongoing safety of our people. 

• A dedicated COVID-19 working group has been formed and it is likely that this will see our people transitioning back to the office gradually 

over a period of time and with altered work practices to observe all required COVID-19 guidelines. 

Our people - we are taking the personal circumstances of our people and the maximum number of people allowed in the office at any one 

time into consideration in our planning. This will be done in consultation with business needs to ensure that the service delivery to WPP 

continues to be seamless and uninterrupted. 

Preparing the office - the working group will focus on getting the office and our people ready for our return to the office, including physical 

distancing and increased health and safety protocols.

P
age 126



Link Asset Services • 7

LFS Engagement Protocol

Strategic Relationship Review Frequency Objective

▪ Bi-annual ▪ Ensure strategic alignment between Host Authority and Link

WPP Attendees

▪ Chris Moore

▪ Anthony Parnell

▪ Two Section 151 / Deputy Section 151 officers

Link Attendees

▪ Karl Midl, Managing Director 

▪ Duncan Lowman, Head of Client Coverage

JGC Engagement Frequency Objective

▪ Quarterly ▪ Engage with JGC on pertinent matters and strategic deliverables

WPP Attendees

▪ Joint Governance Committee (JGC)

Link Attendees

▪ Karl Midl, Managing Director / Duncan Lowman, Head of Client Coverage

▪ Eamonn Gough, Senior Relationship Manager

▪ Adam Tookey, Head of Product (as required)

▪ Russell Investments

OWG Engagement Frequency Objective

▪ Every 2 Months ▪ Identify and deliver on opportunities to improve and expand the relationship

▪ Provide update on open projects or issues 

▪ Monthly KPI  Review (Data supplied monthly)

WPP Attendees

▪ Officers Working Group (OWG)

Link Attendees

▪ Eamonn Gough, Senior Relationship Manager

▪ Duncan Lowman, Head of Relationship Management 

▪ Adam Tookey, Head of Product (as required)

▪ Ada Wabara, Relationship Manager (as required)

▪ Sheetal Shetty, Client Service Manager (as required)

▪ Ad-hoc Link attendance from functional departments: Tax, Compliance, Product, etc.

▪ Russell Investments

Business as Usual

Note: The OWG Engagement and Monthly KPI meetings may be conducted remotely and/or amalgamated where required.

P
age 127



Link Asset Services • 8

Link Engagement Protocol continued…

Annual Shareholder Day Frequency Objective

▪ Annual ▪ Open day for presentations on strategy and performance (with IM)

▪ Open to all involved parties ▪ Link Client Team

▪ Northern Trust

▪ Russell Investments and other Investment Managers (e.g. Global Growth Managers)

▪ Other consultants as required (e.g. bFinance)

Pension Fund Committees Objective

▪ Annual ▪ General update on the ACS and planned initiatives

▪ Individual Pension Fund Committee meetings ▪ Eamonn Gough, Senior Relationship Manager

▪ Ada Wabara, Relationship Manager

▪ Duncan Lowman, Head of Relationship Management 

▪ Russell Investments

Business as Usual

Host Authority Update Frequency Objective

▪ Bi-Weekly ▪ Regular Host Authority – LFS to discuss deliverables and business updates

WPP Attendees

▪ Anthony Parnell

▪ Tracey Williams

▪ Duncan Lowman, Head of Client Coverage

▪ Eamonn Gough, Senior Relationship Manager

▪ Ada Wabara, Relationship Manager (as required)

▪ Sheetal Shetty, Client Service Manager (as required)

WPP Working Group Frequency Objective

▪ Bi-Weekly ▪ Regular project call to discuss progress of deliverables

WPP Attendees

▪ Officers Working Group (OWG)

▪ Hymans

▪ Link Client Team

▪ Northern Trust

▪ Russell Investments 

▪ Other consultants (e.g. bFinance)

P
age 128



WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020

SUBJECT

PERFORMANCE REPORTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To note the performance reports of the following sub funds as at 31 March 
2020:

 WPP Global Growth Fund,  
 WPP Global Opportunities Fund, and
 UK Opportunities Fund.

REASONS: 

Northern Trust have prepared performance reports for the WPP Global Growth 
Fund, WPP Global Opportunities Fund and UK Opportunities Fund as at 31 
March 2020.

Report Author:
Chris Moore

Designation:
Director of Corporate Services

Carmarthenshire County 
Council

Tel No. 01267 224160 

E. Mail: 
CMoore@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 129

Agenda Item 12



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 17 JULY 2020
   

PERFORMANCE REPORTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

Northern Trust have provided performance reports for the WPP’s Global Growth Fund, 
Global Opportunities Fund and UK Opportunities Fund as at 31 March 2020.

Market Values:
 WPP Global Growth Fund:
 Market Value as at 31 December 2019 – £2,373,976,400
 Market Value as at 31 March 2020 – £1,961,892,648

 WPP Global Opportunities Fund:
 Market Value as at 31 December 2019 – £2,233,379,922
 Market Value as at 31 March 2020 – £1,881,872,223

 WPP UK Opportunities Fund:
 Market Value as at 31 December 2019 – £685,363,821
 Market Value as at 31 March 2020 - £480,052,962

Performance - Inception to date:
WPP Global Growth Fund Gross of Fees (%) Net of Fees (%)
Actual (4.58) (4.97) 
Benchmark (3.76) (3.76)
Excess Return (0.82) (1.21)

WPP Global Opportunities Fund Gross of Fees (%) Net of Fees (%)
Actual (3.64) (3.98)
Benchmark (5.03) (5.03)
Excess Return            1.39            1.05

WPP UK Opportunities Fund Gross of Fees (%) Net of Fees (%)
Actual (24.46) (24.63)
Benchmark (20.83) (20.83)
Excess Return  (3.64)  (3.81)

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Page 130



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE NONE YES NONE NONE

Finance
The market values of all 3 sub funds have decreased during the last quarter. WPP Global 
Growth Fund decreased from £2,373,976,400 to £1,961,972,648, WPP Global Opportunities 
Fund decreased from £2,233,379,922 to £1,881,872,223 and the UK Opportunities Fund 
decreased from £685,363,821 to £480,052,962.

Global Growth and UK Opportunities have underperformed their benchmarks by 0.82% (gross) 
/ 1.21% (net) and 3.64% (gross) / 3.81% (net) respectively whilst Global Opportunities have 
outperformed their benchmark by 1.39% (gross) / 1.05% (net). 

Page 131



CONSULTATIONS

Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Page 132



March 31, 2020

Wales Pension Partnership

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 133



Table of Contents
Section 1. Wales Pension Partnership Wales Pension Partnership

3

1.1. Wales Pension Partnership Summary 4

1.2. Total Fund Gross of Fees 5

1.3. Total Fund Net of Fees 6

1.4. Asset Allocation over Time 7

Section 2. AppendixAppendix
8

2.1. Disclaimer(s) 9

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 134



March 31, 2020

W ales Pension Partnership

S E C T I O N 1

Wales Pension Partnership

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 135



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T Wales Pension Partnership March 31, 2020

4  of  9  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Wales Pension Partnership Summary
Account/Group -Rate of Return E.MV-GOF End Wt 1 Mo 3 Mos 1 Yr ITD Inc Date

Wales Pension Partnership 4,323,820,567 100.00 -12.72 -18.22 -7.22 -4.87 06/02/2019

Global Growth Fund 1,961,892,648 45.37 -12.65 -17.27 -6.92 -4.58 06/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019

Excess Return -1.75 -1.28 -0.18 -0.82 06/02/2019

Global Opportunities Equity 1,881,872,223 43.52 -10.95 -15.67 -4.54 -3.81 14/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03 14/02/2019

Excess Return -0.05 0.32 2.20 1.22 14/02/2019

UK Opportunities Equity 480,052,962 11.10 -19.28 -29.84 - -24.46 11/10/2019

FTSE All-Share -15.07 -25.13 - -20.83 11/10/2019

Excess Return -4.22 -4.71 - -3.64 11/10/2019

GROWTH OVER TIME - INCEPTION TO DATE - TOTAL FUND GROSS OF FEES ASSET CLASS ENDING WEIGHTS

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 136



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T Wales Pension Partnership March 31, 2020

5  of  9  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Total Fund Gross of Fees
Account/Group -Rate of Return E.MV-GOF End Wt 1 Mo 3 Mos 1 Yr ITD Inc Date

Wales Pension Partnership 4,323,820,567 100.00 -12.72 -18.22 -7.22 -4.87 06/02/2019

Global Growth Fund 1,961,892,648 45.37 -12.65 -17.27 -6.92 -4.58 06/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019

Excess Return -1.75 -1.28 -0.18 -0.82 06/02/2019

Global Opportunities Equity 1,881,872,223 43.52 -10.95 -15.67 -4.54 -3.81 14/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03 14/02/2019

Excess Return -0.05 0.32 2.20 1.22 14/02/2019

UK Opportunities Equity 480,052,962 11.10 -19.28 -29.84 - -24.46 11/10/2019

FTSE All-Share -15.07 -25.13 - -20.83 11/10/2019

Excess Return -4.22 -4.71 - -3.64 11/10/2019

WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP TOTAL FUND GROSS OF FEES

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

ITD

Fund -12.72 -18.22 -7.22 -4.87

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 137



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T Wales Pension Partnership March 31, 2020

6  of  9  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Total Fund Net of Fees
Account/Group -Rate of Return E.MV-NOF End Wt 1 Mo 3 Mos 1 Yr ITD Inc Date

Wales Pension Partnership 4,320,578,078 100.00 -12.76 -18.31 -7.57 -5.23 06/02/2019

Global Growth Fund 1,960,487,830 45.38 -12.69 -17.37 -7.30 -4.97 06/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019

Excess Return -1.80 -1.38 -0.56 -1.21 06/02/2019

Global Opportunities Equity 1,880,288,981 43.52 -10.98 -15.75 -4.87 -4.15 14/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03 14/02/2019

Excess Return -0.09 0.24 1.87 0.88 14/02/2019

UK Opportunities Equity 479,798,532 11.10 -19.32 -29.93 - -24.63 11/10/2019

FTSE All-Share -15.07 -25.13 - -20.83 11/10/2019

Excess Return -4.26 -4.80 - -3.81 11/10/2019

WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP TOTAL FUND NET OF FEES

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

ITD

Fund -12.76 -18.31 -7.57 -5.23

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 138



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T Wales Pension Partnership March 31, 2020

7  of  9  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Category: Total Fund Gross of Fees

Allocation over Time

30/06/2019 30/09/2019 31/12/2019 31/03/2020

Account / Group Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight

Wales Pension Partnership 4,318,867,953 100.00 5,117,995,157 100.00 5,292,723,592 100.00 4,323,820,567 100.00

Global Growth Fund 2,204,139,517 51.04 2,288,355,103 44.71 2,373,976,400 44.85 1,961,892,648 45.37

Global Opportunities Equity 2,114,503,736 48.96 2,186,490,978 42.72 2,233,379,922 42.20 1,881,872,223 43.52

UK Opportunities Equity 685,363,821 12.95 480,052,962 11.10

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 139



March 31, 2020

Appendix

S E C T I O N 2

Appendix

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 140



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T Wales Pension Partnership March 31, 2020

9  of  9  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Disclaimer(s)

The Global Industry Classification Standard ("GICS") was developed by and is the exclusive 
property and a service mark of Morgan Stanley Capital International Inc.("MSCI") and Standard & 
Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.("S&P") and is licensed for use by The 
Northern Trust Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Neither MSCI, S&P, nor any other 
party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any GICS classifications makes any express or 
implied warranties or representations with respect to such standard or classification (or the results 
to be obtained by the use thereof), and all such parties hereby expressly disclaim all warranties of 
originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose with respect 
to any of such standard or classification. Without limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall 
MSCI, S&P, any of their affiliates or any third party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any 
GICS classifications have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any 
other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the possibility of such damages. 

The Dow Jones Wilshire Indexes are calculated, distributed and marketed by Dow Jones & 
Company, Inc. pursuant to an agreement between Dow Jones and Wilshire and have been licensed 
for use. All content of the Dow Jones Wilshire Indexes © 2005 Dow Jones & Company, Inc. & 
Wilshire Associates Incorporated.

Standard and Poor's including its subsidiary corporations ("S&P") is a division of the McGraw-Hill 
Companies, Inc. Reproduction of S&P Index Alerts in any form is prohibited except with the prior 
written permission of S&P. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error by S&P 
sources, S&P or others, S&P does not guarantee the accuracy, adequacy, completeness or 
availability of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results 
obtained from the use of such information. S&P gives not express or implied warranties, including, 
but not limited to, any warranties or merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or use. In no 
event shall S&P be liable for any indirect, special or consequential damages in connection with 
subscriber's or others' use of S&P Index Alerts.

All MSCI equity characteristic results except for Dividend Yield, Price to Book Value, Price to Cash 
Earnings and Price Earnings Ratio were calculated by The Northern Trust Company.

FTSE ® is a trade mark of London Stock Exchange Plc and The Financial Times Limited and is 
used by FTSE under license. All rights in the FTSE Indices vest in FTSE and/or its licensors. 
Neither FTSE nor its licensors accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the FTSE Indices or 
underlying data.

The Merrill Lynch Indices are used with permission. Copyright 2007, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & 
Smith Incorporated. All rights reserved. The Merrill Lynch Indices may not be copied, used, or 
distributed without Merrill Lynch's prior written approval.

The Citi Index data is provided to you on an "AS IS" basis and you agree that use of the index data 
is at your sole risk. Citi Index makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, to you or 
any other person or entity, including without limitation any warranty of merchantability, originality, 
suitability or fitness for a particular purpose of the index data or any other matter and no warranty is 
given that the index data will conform to any description thereof or be free of omissions, errors, 
interruptions or defects. 4. In no event shall Citi Index be liable to you or any other person or entity 
for any direct, incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages (including, without limitation,

lost profits or revenues, loss of data, loss of use or claims of third parties), arising out of or in any 
manner in connection with your use of (or inability to use) the index data, whether or not you have 
been advised of, or otherwise might have anticipated the possibility of, such damages. Without 
limitation on the foregoing, you acknowledge that the index data may be incomplete or condensed, 
is for information purposes only and is not intended as, and shall not be construed to be, an offer or 
solicitation with respect to the purchase or sale of any security. All opinions and estimates provided 
constitute judgments as of their respective dates and are subject to change without notice. Such 
data, information, opinions and estimates are furnished as part of a general service, without regard 
to your particular circumstances, and Citi Index shall not be liable for any damages in connection 
therewith. Citi Index is not undertaking to manage money or act as a fiduciary with respect to your 
accounts or any of your managed or fiduciary accounts and you acknowledge and agree that the 
index data does not and shall not serve as the primary basis for any investment decisions made with 
respect to such accounts.

iShares® and BlackRock® are registered trademarks of BlackRock, Inc. and its affiliates 
("BlackRock") and are used under license. BlackRock has licensed certain trademarks and trade 
names of BlackRock to The Northern Trust Company. The Northern Trust Company's products and 
services are not sponsored, endorsed, sold, or promoted by BlackRock, and BlackRock makes no 
representations or warranties related to such products or services either to The Northern Trust 
Company or any other person or entity, including but not limited to the advisability of investing in the 
products of The Northern Trust Company. BlackRock has no obligation or liability in connection with 
the operation, marketing, trading or sale of the products or services from The Northern Trust 
Company.

Please note that this report has been prepared using best available data. This report may also 
contain information provided by third parties, derived by third parties or derived from third party data 
and/or data that may have been categorized or otherwise reported based upon client direction -
Northern Trust assumes no responsibility for the accuracy, timeliness or completeness of any such 
information. If you have questions regarding third party data or direction as it relates to this report, 
please contact your Northern Trust relationship team.

INVESTMENT ADVICE NOTICE:  The data and analysis contained in this report is for informational 
purposes only.  In providing the information contained herein, The Northern Trust Company is not 
undertaking to provide “investment advice” or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity for purposes of 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.  Nothing in this report is  
intended as, or should be understood as, a recommendation to hire, retain, or terminate an 
investment manager or engage in any purchase or sale transaction with  such a manager or any 
fund that it manages.  The Northern Trust Company and/or its affiliates may have business 
relationships with one or more investment managers or funds for included in this report, and may 
receive compensation for providing custody, administration, banking, brokerage, foreign exchange 
or other services to such investment managers or funds. The Northern Trust Company and its 
affiliates shall have no responsibility for the consequences of investment decisions made in reliance 
on information contained in this report.

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 141



T
his page is intentionally left blank



March 31, 2020

WPP Global Growth Fund
 

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

P
age 143



Table of Contents
Section 1. WPP Global Growth FundWPP Global Growth Fund

3

1.1. WPP Global Growth Fund Summary 4

1.2. Total Fund Gross of Fees 5

1.3. Total Fund Net of Fees 6

1.4. Asset Allocation Overview 7

1.5. Asset Allocation over Time 8

1.6. Regional Performance - Regional CTR 9

Section 2. AppendixAppendix

10

2.1. Disclaimer(s) 11

P
age 144



March 31, 2020

WPP Global Growth Fund

S E C T I O N    1

WPP Global Growth Fund
 

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

P
age 145



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Growth Fund March 31, 2020

4  of  11  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

WPP Global Growth Fund Summary
Account/Group -Rate of Return E.MV-GOF End Wt 1 Mo 3 Mos 1 Yr ITD Inc Date
WPP Global Growth Fund 1,961,892,648 100.00 -12.65 -17.27 -6.92 -4.58 06/02/2019
LF WPP GGF - BAILLIE GIFFORD 848,081,110 43.23 -11.06 -13.19 -0.78 2.47 06/02/2019
LF WPP GGF - PZENA INV MGT LLC 556,180,773 28.35 -18.77 -27.93 -20.29 -18.67 06/02/2019
LF WPP GGF - VERITAS AM LLP 526,399,852 26.83 -8.67 -11.00 0.20 2.64 06/02/2019

GROWTH OVER TIME - INCEPTION TO DATE - TOTAL FUND GROSS OF FEES ASSET CLASS ENDING WEIGHTS

P
age 146



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Growth Fund March 31, 2020

5  of  11  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Total Fund Gross of Fees
Account/Group -Rate of Return E.MV-GOF End Wt 1 Mo 3 Mos 1 Yr ITD Inc Date
WPP Global Growth Fund 1,961,892,648 100.00 -12.65 -17.27 -6.92 -4.58 06/02/2019
MSCI ACWI ND   -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019
Excess Return   -1.75 -1.28 -0.18 -0.82 06/02/2019

LF WPP GGF - BAILLIE GIFFORD 848,081,110 43.23 -11.06 -13.19 -0.78 2.47 06/02/2019
MSCI ACWI ND   -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019
Excess Return   -0.17 2.79 5.96 6.23 06/02/2019

LF WPP GGF - PZENA INV MGT LLC 556,180,773 28.35 -18.77 -27.93 -20.29 -18.67 06/02/2019
MSCI ACWI ND   -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019
Excess Return   -7.88 -11.94 -13.55 -14.91 06/02/2019

LF WPP GGF - VERITAS AM LLP 526,399,852 26.83 -8.67 -11.00 0.20 2.64 06/02/2019
MSCI ACWI ND   -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019
Excess Return   2.22 4.99 6.94 6.40 06/02/2019

WPP GLOBAL GROWTH FUND TOTAL FUND GROSS OF FEES

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

ITD

 Fund -12.65 -17.27 -6.92 -4.58

 Index -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76

Index: MSCI ACWI ND

P
age 147



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Growth Fund March 31, 2020

6  of  11  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Total Fund Net of Fees
Account/Group -Rate of Return E.MV-NOF End Wt 1 Mo 3 Mos 1 Yr ITD Inc Date
WPP Global Growth Fund 1,960,487,830 100.00 -12.69 -17.37 -7.30 -4.97 06/02/2019
MSCI ACWI ND   -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019
Excess Return   -1.80 -1.38 -0.56 -1.21 06/02/2019

LF WPP GGF - BAILLIE GIFFORD 847,816,745 43.25 -11.10 -13.28 -1.13 2.11 06/02/2019
MSCI ACWI ND   -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019
Excess Return   -0.20 2.71 5.61 5.87 06/02/2019

LF WPP GGF - PZENA INV MGT LLC 556,005,912 28.36 -18.80 -28.00 -20.57 -18.96 06/02/2019
MSCI ACWI ND   -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019
Excess Return   -7.91 -12.02 -13.84 -15.20 06/02/2019

LF WPP GGF - VERITAS AM LLP 526,231,312 26.84 -8.70 -11.09 -0.17 2.26 06/02/2019
MSCI ACWI ND   -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76 06/02/2019
Excess Return   2.19 4.90 6.57 6.02 06/02/2019

WPP GLOBAL GROWTH FUND TOTAL FUND NET OF FEES

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

ITD

 Fund -12.69 -17.37 -7.30 -4.97

 Index -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -3.76

Index: MSCI ACWI ND

P
age 148



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Growth Fund March 31, 2020

7  of  11  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Asset Allocation Overview

Program/Consolidation

Ending
Market Value

GOF GBP Actual Weight Target Weight
LF WPP GGF - BAILLIE GIFFORD 848,081 43.23 40.00
LF WPP GGF - PZENA INV MGT LLC 556,181 28.35 35.00
LF WPP GGF - VERITAS AM LLP 526,400 26.83 25.00
Operator Account 31,209 1.59  
Top Account 0 0.00  
Transition Account 22 0.00  
WPP Global Growth Fund 1,961,893 100.00  
WPP Global Growth Fund Percent    
*Market Values are represented in thousands.
*Underlying assets of the fund have been included in the market value and allocation.

P
age 149



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Growth Fund March 31, 2020

8  of  11  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Category: Total Fund Gross of Fees

Allocation over Time

31/12/2019 31/01/2020 29/02/2020 31/03/2020
Account / Group Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight
WPP Global Growth Fund 2,373,976,400 100.00 2,349,966,974 100.00 2,246,826,295 100.00 1,961,892,648 100.00
LF WPP GGF - BAILLIE GIFFORD 978,959,793 41.24 980,053,035 41.70 953,930,892 42.46 848,081,110 43.23
LF WPP GGF - PZENA INV MGT LLC 775,504,800 32.67 737,361,459 31.38 685,619,429 30.52 556,180,773 28.35
LF WPP GGF - VERITAS AM LLP 592,666,009 24.97 602,863,891 25.65 576,579,672 25.66 526,399,852 26.83
Operator Account 26,824,766 1.13 29,667,723 1.26 30,674,957 1.37 31,208,948 1.59
Top Account 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Transition Account 21,031 0.00 20,867 0.00 21,345 0.00 21,964 0.00

P
age 150



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Growth Fund March 31, 2020

9  of  11  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Analysis: Regional CTR

Regional Performance
Base Rates of Return

Category

Ending
Market value

GBP - GOF
Ending
Weight

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

Inception
to Date

WPP Global Growth Fund 1,961,892,648 100.00 -12.65 -17.27 -6.92 -4.58
Total Fund - Foreign Exchange 1,961,909,000 100.00 -12.65 -17.27 -6.91 -4.57
Equity 1,902,326,236 96.96 -13.52 -18.38 -7.56 -5.07
Australia 26,257,222 1.34 -14.68 -20.91 -6.86 -3.12
Brazil 9,637,338 0.49 -35.60 -43.01 -36.99 -36.28
Canada 39,762,420 2.03 -11.95 -8.47 19.90 17.51
Cayman Islands 5,837,328 0.30 1.44 14.03 - -
China 102,367,744 5.22 -5.70 -9.12 -9.98 -1.35
Denmark 21,362,936 1.09 -5.82 -26.87 -7.10 -8.53
France 64,073,569 3.27 -22.66 -29.18 -19.70 -12.42
Germany 48,479,987 2.47 -14.01 -21.29 -5.80 -6.34
Hong Kong 26,171,211 1.33 -6.75 -9.23 -6.53 -1.72
India 21,688,065 1.11 -27.94 -33.61 -22.83 -11.10
Ireland 19,468,868 0.99 -21.78 -34.85 -22.02 -19.05
Italy 14,317,102 0.73 -20.70 -17.93 0.04 1.48
Japan 131,095,928 6.68 -11.12 -13.69 1.91 2.90
Netherlands 50,495,530 2.57 -9.98 -16.10 -13.56 -9.03
Norway 7,178,220 0.37 -19.27 -29.28 -25.11 -15.83
Republic of Korea 19,541,396 1.00 -12.38 -30.87 -34.48 -36.34
Russian Federation 7,234,458 0.37 -26.08 -34.13 -23.67 -21.70
Singapore 6,894,712 0.35 -18.12 -21.46 -0.06 -0.74
South Africa 25,549,211 1.30 -2.79 -6.81 -3.12 0.58
Spain 8,415,063 0.43 -28.91 -38.78 -33.11 -26.60
Sweden 31,157,421 1.59 -9.45 -14.40 -3.10 1.31
Switzerland 52,443,737 2.67 -2.29 -7.38 5.64 6.76
Taiwan 29,315,794 1.49 -9.17 -14.01 19.01 22.54
United Kingdom 147,989,223 7.54 -14.51 -23.26 -17.45 -14.68
United States 985,591,752 50.24 -14.13 -17.78 -6.12 -4.51

Cash & Short Term Deriv. 64,048,994 3.26 -0.99 -0.75 -0.37 -0.46
Foreign Exchange -16,352 -0.00 22570002089748100000.00 - - -
Pending Cash -4,466,230 -0.23 -0.39 -0.49 611.53 445.85

• Excess is calculated using arithmetic methodology

P
age 151



March 31, 2020

Appendix

S E C T I O N    2

Appendix
 

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

P
age 152



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Growth Fund March 31, 2020

11  of  11  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Disclaimer(s)

The Global Industry Classification Standard ("GICS") was developed by and is the exclusive 
property and a service mark of Morgan Stanley Capital International Inc.("MSCI") and Standard & 
Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.("S&P") and is licensed for use by The 
Northern Trust Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Neither MSCI, S&P, nor any other 
party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any GICS classifications makes any express or 
implied warranties or representations with respect to such standard or classification (or the results 
to be obtained by the use thereof), and all such parties hereby expressly disclaim all warranties of 
originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose with respect 
to any of such standard or classification. Without limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall 
MSCI, S&P, any of their affiliates or any third party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any 
GICS classifications have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any 
other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the possibility of such damages. 

The Dow Jones Wilshire Indexes are calculated, distributed and marketed by Dow Jones & 
Company, Inc. pursuant to an agreement between Dow Jones and Wilshire and have been licensed 
for use. All content of the Dow Jones Wilshire Indexes © 2005 Dow Jones & Company, Inc. & 
Wilshire Associates Incorporated.

Standard and Poor's including its subsidiary corporations ("S&P") is a division of the McGraw-Hill 
Companies, Inc. Reproduction of S&P Index Alerts in any form is prohibited except with the prior 
written permission of S&P. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error by S&P 
sources, S&P or others, S&P does not guarantee the accuracy, adequacy, completeness or 
availability of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results 
obtained from the use of such information. S&P gives not express or implied warranties, including, 
but not limited to, any warranties or merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or use. In no 
event shall S&P be liable for any indirect, special or consequential damages in connection with 
subscriber's or others' use of S&P Index Alerts.

All MSCI equity characteristic results except for Dividend Yield, Price to Book Value, Price to Cash 
Earnings and Price Earnings Ratio were calculated by The Northern Trust Company.

FTSE ® is a trade mark of London Stock Exchange Plc and The Financial Times Limited and is 
used by FTSE under license. All rights in the FTSE Indices vest in FTSE and/or its licensors. 
Neither FTSE nor its licensors accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the FTSE Indices or 
underlying data.

The Merrill Lynch Indices are used with permission. Copyright 2007, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & 
Smith Incorporated. All rights reserved. The Merrill Lynch Indices may not be copied, used, or 
distributed without Merrill Lynch's prior written approval.

The Citi Index data is provided to you on an "AS IS" basis and you agree that use of the index data 
is at your sole risk. Citi Index makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, to you or 
any other person or entity, including without limitation any warranty of merchantability, originality, 
suitability or fitness for a particular purpose of the index data or any other matter and no warranty is 
given that the index data will conform to any description thereof or be free of omissions, errors, 
interruptions or defects. 4. In no event shall Citi Index be liable to you or any other person or entity 
for any direct, incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages (including, without limitation,

lost profits or revenues, loss of data, loss of use or claims of third parties), arising out of or in any 
manner in connection with your use of (or inability to use) the index data, whether or not you have 
been advised of, or otherwise might have anticipated the possibility of, such damages. Without 
limitation on the foregoing, you acknowledge that the index data may be incomplete or condensed, 
is for information purposes only and is not intended as, and shall not be construed to be, an offer or 
solicitation with respect to the purchase or sale of any security. All opinions and estimates provided 
constitute judgments as of their respective dates and are subject to change without notice. Such 
data, information, opinions and estimates are furnished as part of a general service, without regard 
to your particular circumstances, and Citi Index shall not be liable for any damages in connection 
therewith. Citi Index is not undertaking to manage money or act as a fiduciary with respect to your 
accounts or any of your managed or fiduciary accounts and you acknowledge and agree that the 
index data does not and shall not serve as the primary basis for any investment decisions made with 
respect to such accounts.

iShares® and BlackRock® are registered trademarks of BlackRock, Inc. and its affiliates 
("BlackRock") and are used under license. BlackRock has licensed certain trademarks and trade 
names of BlackRock to The Northern Trust Company. The Northern Trust Company's products and 
services are not sponsored, endorsed, sold, or promoted by BlackRock, and BlackRock makes no 
representations or warranties related to such products or services either to The Northern Trust 
Company or any other person or entity, including but not limited to the advisability of investing in the 
products of The Northern Trust Company. BlackRock has no obligation or liability in connection with 
the operation, marketing, trading or sale of the products or services from The Northern Trust 
Company.

Please note that this report has been prepared using best available data. This report may also 
contain information provided by third parties, derived by third parties or derived from third party data 
and/or data that may have been categorized or otherwise reported based upon client direction - 
Northern Trust assumes no responsibility for the accuracy, timeliness or completeness of any such 
information. If you have questions regarding third party data or direction as it relates to this report, 
please contact your Northern Trust relationship team.

INVESTMENT ADVICE NOTICE:  The data and analysis contained in this report is for informational 
purposes only.  In providing the information contained herein, The Northern Trust Company is not 
undertaking to provide “investment advice” or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity for purposes of 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.  Nothing in this report is  
intended as, or should be understood as, a recommendation to hire, retain, or terminate an 
investment manager or engage in any purchase or sale transaction with  such a manager or any 
fund that it manages.  The Northern Trust Company and/or its affiliates may have business 
relationships with one or more investment managers or funds for included in this report, and may 
receive compensation for providing custody, administration, banking, brokerage, foreign exchange 
or other services to such investment managers or funds. The Northern Trust Company and its 
affiliates shall have no responsibility for the consequences of investment decisions made in reliance 
on information contained in this report.

P
age 153



T
his page is intentionally left blank



March 31, 2020

WPP Global Opportunities Fund

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 155



Table of Contents
Section 1. WPP Global Opportunities FundWPP Global Opportunities Fund

3

1.1. WPP Global Opportunities Fund Summary 4

1.2. Total Fund Gross of Fees 5

1.3. Total Fund Net of Fees 6

1.4. Return Charts 7

1.5. Asset Allocation Overview 8

1.6. Asset Allocation over Time 9

1.7. Regional Performance - Regional CTR 10

Section 2. AppendixAppendix
12

2.1. Disclaimer(s) 13

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 156



March 31, 2020

W PP Global Opportunities Fund

S E C T I O N 1

WPP Global Opportunities Fund

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 157



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Opportunities Fund March 31, 2020

4  of  13  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

WPP Global Opportunities Fund Summary
Account/Group -Rate of Return E.MV-GOF End Wt 1 Mo 3 Mos 1 Yr ITD Inc Date

WPP Global Opportunities Fund 1,881,872,223 100.00 -10.95 -15.67 -4.35 -3.64 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF - MSTANLEY 177,491,539 9.43 -6.16 -5.11 7.83 9.65 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF JACOBS LEVY 266,775,505 14.18 -9.28 -14.31 -2.22 -1.89 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF NUMERIC 318,561,858 16.93 -8.80 -12.42 -4.90 -4.43 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF NWQ INV MGMT 288,917,401 15.35 -4.46 -12.45 -2.38 -4.31 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF OAKTREE 266,026,965 14.14 -17.26 -24.47 -16.72 -14.59 14/02/2019

RI - Overlays 125,792,293 6.68 - - - - 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF SANDERS CAP 301,091,465 16.00 -11.58 -17.15 -3.13 -3.27 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF SW MITCHELL 135,403,950 7.20 -13.92 -20.83 -6.71 -5.15 14/02/2019

GROWTH OVER TIME - INCEPTION TO DATE - TOTAL FUND GROSS OF FEES ASSET CLASS ENDING WEIGHTS

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 158



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Opportunities Fund March 31, 2020

5  of  13  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Category: Total Fund Gross of Fees

Total Fund Gross of Fees

% Rate of Return

Account/Group

Ending
Market Value

GBP
Ending
Weight

Policy 
Weight

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

Inception
to Date

Inception
Date

WPP Global Opportunities Fund 1,881,872,223 100.00 -10.95 -15.67 -4.35 -3.64 14/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03 14/02/2019

Excess Return -0.05 0.32 2.39 1.39 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF - MSTANLEY 177,491,539 9.43 12.00 -6.16 -5.11 7.83 9.65 14/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03 14/02/2019

Excess Return 4.74 10.88 14.57 14.68 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF JACOBS LEVY 266,775,505 14.18 14.00 -9.28 -14.31 -2.22 -1.89 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF NUMERIC 318,561,858 16.93 19.00 -8.80 -12.42 -4.90 -4.43 14/02/2019

MSCI World Index -10.62 -15.65 -5.83 -4.08 14/02/2019

Excess Return 1.82 3.23 0.93 -0.34 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF NWQ INV MGMT 288,917,401 15.35 14.00 -4.46 -12.45 -2.38 -4.31 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF OAKTREE 266,026,965 14.14 15.00 -17.26 -24.47 -16.72 -14.59 14/02/2019

MSCI Emerging Markets Index -12.85 -18.37 -13.50 -11.99 14/02/2019

Excess Return -4.41 -6.09 -3.23 -2.60 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF SANDERS CAP 301,091,465 16.00 15.00 -11.58 -17.15 -3.13 -3.27 14/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03 14/02/2019

Excess Return -0.68 -1.17 3.61 1.76 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF SW MITCHELL 135,403,950 7.20 11.00 -13.92 -20.83 -6.71 -5.15 14/02/2019

MSCI Europe ND -11.87 -19.16 -11.20 -8.27 14/02/2019

Excess Return -2.06 -1.68 4.49 3.13 14/02/2019

Operator Account 1,791,945 0.10 - - - - 31/01/2019

RI - Overlays 125,792,293 6.68 - - - 14/02/2019

Top Account 0 0.00 - - - - 31/01/2018

Transition Account 19,301 0.00 - - - - 31/01/2018

NTAC:3NS-20

-

P
age 159



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Opportunities Fund March 31, 2020

6  of  13  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Category: Total Fund Net of Fees

Total Fund Net of Fees

% Rate of Return

Account/Group

Ending
Market Value

GBP
Ending
Weight

Policy 
Weight

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

Inception
to Date

Inception
Date

WPP Global Opportunities Fund 1,880,288,981 100.00 -10.98 -15.75 -4.68 -3.98 14/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03 14/02/2019

Excess Return -0.09 0.24 2.06 1.05 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF - MSTANLEY 177,491,539 9.44 12.00 -6.16 -5.11 7.83 9.65 14/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03 14/02/2019

Excess Return 4.74 10.88 14.57 14.68 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF JACOBS LEVY 266,775,505 14.19 14.00 -9.28 -14.31 -2.22 -1.89 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF NUMERIC 318,561,858 16.94 19.00 -8.80 -12.42 -4.90 -4.43 14/02/2019

MSCI World Index -10.62 -15.65 -5.83 -4.08 14/02/2019

Excess Return 1.82 3.23 0.93 -0.34 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF NWQ INV MGMT 288,917,401 15.37 14.00 -4.46 -12.45 -2.38 -4.31 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF OAKTREE 266,026,965 14.15 15.00 -17.26 -24.47 -16.73 -14.60 14/02/2019

MSCI Emerging Markets Index -12.85 -18.37 -13.50 -11.99 14/02/2019

Excess Return -4.41 -6.10 -3.23 -2.61 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF SANDERS CAP 301,091,465 16.01 15.00 -11.58 -17.15 -3.13 -3.27 14/02/2019

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03 14/02/2019

Excess Return -0.68 -1.17 3.61 1.76 14/02/2019

LF WALES PPGOEF SW MITCHELL 135,403,950 7.20 11.00 -13.92 -20.83 -6.71 -5.15 14/02/2019

MSCI Europe ND -11.87 -19.16 -11.20 -8.27 14/02/2019

Excess Return -2.06 -1.68 4.49 3.13 14/02/2019

Operator Account 1,791,945 0.10 - 31/01/2019

RI - Overlays 125,792,293 6.69 14/02/2019

Top Account -1,583,242 -0.08 - 31/01/2018

Transition Account 19,301 0.00 - 31/01/2018

NTAC:3NS-20

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

P
age 160



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Opportunities Fund March 31, 2020

7  of  13  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Return Charts
WPP GLOBAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND TOTAL FUND GROSS OF FEES

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

ITD

Fund -10.95 -15.67 -4.35 -3.64

Index -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03

Index: MSCI ACWI ND

WPP GLOBAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND TOTAL FUND NET OF FEES

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

ITD

Fund -10.98 -15.75 -4.68 -3.98

Index -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03

Index: MSCI ACWI ND

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 161



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Opportunities Fund March 31, 2020

9  of  13  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Category: Total Fund Gross of Fees

Allocation over Time

31/12/2019 31/01/2020 29/02/2020 31/03/2020

Account / Group Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight

WPP Global Opportunities Fund 2,233,379,922 100.00 2,215,137,420 100.00 2,113,823,496 100.00 1,881,872,223 100.00

LF WALES PPGOEF - MSTANLEY 187,041,446 8.37 192,301,453 8.68 189,140,453 8.95 177,491,539 9.43

LF WALES PPGOEF JACOBS LEVY 311,318,322 13.94 308,586,218 13.93 294,066,306 13.91 266,775,505 14.18

LF WALES PPGOEF NUMERIC 399,079,370 17.87 402,113,993 18.15 383,225,772 18.13 318,561,858 16.93

LF WALES PPGOEF NWQ INV MGMT 330,015,710 14.78 326,760,326 14.75 302,417,077 14.31 288,917,401 15.35

LF WALES PPGOEF OAKTREE 352,215,361 15.77 332,378,143 15.00 321,534,059 15.21 266,026,965 14.14

LF WALES PPGOEF SANDERS CAP 400,892,310 17.95 392,498,121 17.72 375,622,970 17.77 301,091,465 16.00

LF WALES PPGOEF SW MITCHELL 171,036,625 7.66 164,989,744 7.45 157,303,662 7.44 135,403,950 7.20

RI - Overlays 57,209,961 2.56 71,522,856 3.23 67,125,312 3.18 125,792,293 6.68

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 162



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Opportunities Fund March 31, 2020

10  of  13  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Analysis: Regional CTR

Regional Performance
Base Rates of Return

Category

Ending
Market value

GBP - GOF
Ending
Weight

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

Inception
to Date

WPP Global Opportunities 1,881,872,223 100.00 -10.95 -15.67 -4.35 -3.64

Total Fund - Foreign Exchange 1,869,519,787 99.34 -11.11 -15.87 -4.52 -3.72

MSCI ACWI ND -10.89 -15.99 -6.74 -5.03

Excess Return -0.22 0.12 2.22 1.30

Equity 1,835,512,926 97.54 -11.44 -16.42 -5.08 -4.26

Belgium 2,887,956 0.15 -2.34 16.95 17.68 12.27

Argentina 687,475 0.04 -34.72 -41.51 -8.91 -5.80

Australia 33,774,692 1.79 -19.11 -25.38 -21.64 -18.09

Brazil 20,827,377 1.11 -43.93 -56.15 -48.65 -48.71

Canada 57,650,633 3.06 -18.28 -21.46 -14.40 -13.49

Chile 1,187,896 0.06 35.37 - - -

China 145,475,829 7.73 -3.52 -3.89 4.26 6.91

Denmark 13,095,284 0.70 -6.07 -18.89 4.38 4.52

Finland - - - - - -

France 77,501,263 4.12 -14.62 -20.83 -3.22 0.30

Germany 54,078,510 2.87 -13.99 -18.89 1.35 1.64

Greece 2,160,981 0.11 -44.01 -61.68 -41.48 -28.49

Hong Kong 30,565,365 1.62 -9.89 -15.77 -24.09 -20.46

Hungary 3,097,198 0.16 -32.03 -40.62 -29.67 -21.37

India 19,938,254 1.06 -25.28 -29.23 -22.33 -11.25

Indonesia 8,277,623 0.44 -34.07 -37.25 -35.88 -28.51

International (USD) 0 0.00 -13.90 -19.20 -12.50 -10.50

Ireland - - - - - -

Israel 8,156,679 0.43 -15.27 -17.15 -1.47 -1.74

Italy 10,315,146 0.55 -18.63 -25.11 -13.74 -8.92

Japan 115,520,176 6.14 - - - -

Mexico 4,691,524 0.25 -42.28 -44.06 -46.53 -45.00

Netherlands 20,476,206 1.09 -8.08 -10.01 -12.56 -8.46

New Zealand 505,475 0.03 -8.66 - - -

Norway 12,886,115 0.68 -10.98 -27.40 -33.59 -31.37

Republic of Korea 58,780,085 3.12 -10.55 -18.90 -9.00 -14.42

Russian Federation 14,475,509 0.77 -28.95 -37.25 -24.30 -17.93

Singapore 8,608,004 0.46 -18.12 -23.92 -18.55 -18.78

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 163



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Opportunities Fund March 31, 2020

11  of  13  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Analysis: Regional CTR

Base Rates of Return

Category

Ending
Market value

GBP - GOF
Ending
Weight

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

Inception
to Date

South Africa 10,083,889 0.54 -21.37 -36.82 -32.46 -31.66

Spain 9,512,212 0.51 -12.42 -20.55 -13.49 -17.40

Sweden 12,455,810 0.66 -3.71 -7.41 2.24 5.83

Switzerland 40,509,451 2.15 0.84 -1.58 12.19 14.29

Taiwan 44,459,820 2.36 -8.31 -13.86 26.31 28.81

Thailand 8,248,410 0.44 -16.56 -29.71 -28.38 -30.67

United Kingdom 45,801,710 2.43 -19.13 -29.36 -30.62 -26.11

United States 938,820,369 49.89 -8.97 -12.57 0.91 0.99

Cash & Short Term Deriv. 142,016,428 7.55 -0.85 -0.17 -0.84 -1.34

Foreign Exchange 12,352,436 0.66 979.18 -739.28 478585.98 -

Pending Cash -2,195,478 -0.12 0.81 -9.16 -753.81 -

Futures Offsets -105,814,088 -5.62 25.33 19.17 12.24 8.95

Other Assets - - - - - -

• Excess is calculated using arithmetic methodology

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 164



March 31, 2020

Appendix

S E C T I O N 2

Appendix

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 165



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP Global Opportunities Fund March 31, 2020

13  of  13  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Disclaimer(s)

The Global Industry Classification Standard ("GICS") was developed by and is the exclusive 
property and a service mark of Morgan Stanley Capital International Inc.("MSCI") and Standard & 
Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.("S&P") and is licensed for use by The 
Northern Trust Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Neither MSCI, S&P, nor any other 
party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any GICS classifications makes any express or 
implied warranties or representations with respect to such standard or classification (or the results 
to be obtained by the use thereof), and all such parties hereby expressly disclaim all warranties of 
originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose with respect 
to any of such standard or classification. Without limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall 
MSCI, S&P, any of their affiliates or any third party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any 
GICS classifications have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any 
other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the possibility of such damages. 

The Dow Jones Wilshire Indexes are calculated, distributed and marketed by Dow Jones & 
Company, Inc. pursuant to an agreement between Dow Jones and Wilshire and have been licensed 
for use. All content of the Dow Jones Wilshire Indexes © 2005 Dow Jones & Company, Inc. & 
Wilshire Associates Incorporated.

Standard and Poor's including its subsidiary corporations ("S&P") is a division of the McGraw-Hill 
Companies, Inc. Reproduction of S&P Index Alerts in any form is prohibited except with the prior 
written permission of S&P. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error by S&P 
sources, S&P or others, S&P does not guarantee the accuracy, adequacy, completeness or 
availability of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results 
obtained from the use of such information. S&P gives not express or implied warranties, including, 
but not limited to, any warranties or merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or use. In no 
event shall S&P be liable for any indirect, special or consequential damages in connection with 
subscriber's or others' use of S&P Index Alerts.

All MSCI equity characteristic results except for Dividend Yield, Price to Book Value, Price to Cash 
Earnings and Price Earnings Ratio were calculated by The Northern Trust Company.

FTSE ® is a trade mark of London Stock Exchange Plc and The Financial Times Limited and is 
used by FTSE under license. All rights in the FTSE Indices vest in FTSE and/or its licensors. 
Neither FTSE nor its licensors accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the FTSE Indices or 
underlying data.

The Merrill Lynch Indices are used with permission. Copyright 2007, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & 
Smith Incorporated. All rights reserved. The Merrill Lynch Indices may not be copied, used, or 
distributed without Merrill Lynch's prior written approval.

The Citi Index data is provided to you on an "AS IS" basis and you agree that use of the index data 
is at your sole risk. Citi Index makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, to you or 
any other person or entity, including without limitation any warranty of merchantability, originality, 
suitability or fitness for a particular purpose of the index data or any other matter and no warranty is 
given that the index data will conform to any description thereof or be free of omissions, errors, 
interruptions or defects. 4. In no event shall Citi Index be liable to you or any other person or entity 
for any direct, incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages (including, without limitation,

lost profits or revenues, loss of data, loss of use or claims of third parties), arising out of or in any 
manner in connection with your use of (or inability to use) the index data, whether or not you have 
been advised of, or otherwise might have anticipated the possibility of, such damages. Without 
limitation on the foregoing, you acknowledge that the index data may be incomplete or condensed, 
is for information purposes only and is not intended as, and shall not be construed to be, an offer or 
solicitation with respect to the purchase or sale of any security. All opinions and estimates provided 
constitute judgments as of their respective dates and are subject to change without notice. Such 
data, information, opinions and estimates are furnished as part of a general service, without regard 
to your particular circumstances, and Citi Index shall not be liable for any damages in connection 
therewith. Citi Index is not undertaking to manage money or act as a fiduciary with respect to your 
accounts or any of your managed or fiduciary accounts and you acknowledge and agree that the 
index data does not and shall not serve as the primary basis for any investment decisions made with 
respect to such accounts.

iShares® and BlackRock® are registered trademarks of BlackRock, Inc. and its affiliates 
("BlackRock") and are used under license. BlackRock has licensed certain trademarks and trade 
names of BlackRock to The Northern Trust Company. The Northern Trust Company's products and 
services are not sponsored, endorsed, sold, or promoted by BlackRock, and BlackRock makes no 
representations or warranties related to such products or services either to The Northern Trust 
Company or any other person or entity, including but not limited to the advisability of investing in the 
products of The Northern Trust Company. BlackRock has no obligation or liability in connection with 
the operation, marketing, trading or sale of the products or services from The Northern Trust 
Company.

Please note that this report has been prepared using best available data. This report may also 
contain information provided by third parties, derived by third parties or derived from third party data 
and/or data that may have been categorized or otherwise reported based upon client direction -
Northern Trust assumes no responsibility for the accuracy, timeliness or completeness of any such 
information. If you have questions regarding third party data or direction as it relates to this report, 
please contact your Northern Trust relationship team.

INVESTMENT ADVICE NOTICE:  The data and analysis contained in this report is for informational 
purposes only.  In providing the information contained herein, The Northern Trust Company is not 
undertaking to provide “investment advice” or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity for purposes of 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.  Nothing in this report is  
intended as, or should be understood as, a recommendation to hire, retain, or terminate an 
investment manager or engage in any purchase or sale transaction with  such a manager or any 
fund that it manages.  The Northern Trust Company and/or its affiliates may have business 
relationships with one or more investment managers or funds for included in this report, and may 
receive compensation for providing custody, administration, banking, brokerage, foreign exchange 
or other services to such investment managers or funds. The Northern Trust Company and its 
affiliates shall have no responsibility for the consequences of investment decisions made in reliance 
on information contained in this report.

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 166



March 31, 2020

WPP UK Opportunities Equity

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 167



Table of Contents
Section 1. WPP UK Opportunities EquityWPP UK Opportunities Equity

3

1.1. WPP UK Opportunities Fund Summary 4

1.2. Total Fund Gross of Fees 5

1.3. Total Fund Net of Fees 6

1.4. Asset Allocation Overview 7

1.5. Asset Allocation over Time 8

1.6. Regional Performance - Regional CTR 9

Section 2. AppendixAppendix
11

2.1. Disclaimer(s) 12

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 168



March 31, 2020

W PP UK Opportunities Equity

S E C T I O N 1

WPP UK Opportunities Equity

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 169



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP UK Opportunities Equity March 31, 2020

4  of  12  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

WPP UK Opportunities Fund Summary
Account/Group -Rate of Return E.MV-GOF End Wt 1 Mo 3 Mos 1 Yr ITD Inc Date

WPP UK Opportunities Equity 480,052,962 100.00 -19.28 -29.84 - -24.46 11/10/2019

W PP UK OPPS EQ RC 471,241,777 98.16 -19.37 -29.89 - -24.54 11/10/2019

RI - Overlays 6,771,887 1.41 - 11/10/2019

GROWTH OVER TIME - INCEPTION TO DATE - TOTAL FUND GROSS OF FEES ASSET CLASS ENDING WEIGHTS

NTAC:3NS-20

-- -

P
age 170



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP UK Opportunities Equity March 31, 2020

5  of  12  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Total Fund Gross of Fees
Account/Group -Rate of Return E.MV-GOF End Wt 1 Mo 3 Mos 1 Yr ITD Inc Date

WPP UK Opportunities Equity 480,052,962 100.00 -19.28 -29.84 - -24.46 11/10/2019

FTSE All-Share -15.07 -25.13 - -20.83 11/10/2019

Excess Return -4.22 -4.71 - -3.64 11/10/2019

W PP UK OPPS EQ RC 471,241,777 98.16 -19.37 -29.89 - -24.54 11/10/2019

FTSE All-Share -15.07 -25.13 - -20.83 11/10/2019

Excess Return -4.31 -4.76 - -3.71 11/10/2019

RI - Overlays 6,771,887 - 11/10/2019

WPP UK OPPORTUNITIES EQUITY TOTAL FUND GROSS OF FEES

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

ITD

Fund -19.28 -29.84 - -24.46

Index -14.99 -25.22 - -21.25

Index: MS UK IMI

NTAC:3NS-20

- - -

P
age 171



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP UK Opportunities Equity March 31, 2020

6  of  12  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Total Fund Net of Fees
Account/Group -Rate of Return E.MV-NOF End Wt 1 Mo 3 Mos 1 Yr ITD Inc Date

WPP UK Opportunities Equity 479,798,532 100.00 -19.32 -29.93 - -24.63 11/10/2019

FTSE All-Share -15.07 -25.13 - -20.83 11/10/2019

Excess Return -4.26 -4.80 - -3.81 11/10/2019

W PP UK OPPS EQ RC 471,083,306 98.18 -19.41 -29.97 - -24.69 11/10/2019

FTSE All-Share -15.07 -25.13 - -20.83 11/10/2019

Excess Return -4.34 -4.84 - -3.86 11/10/2019

RI - Overlays 6,769,719 - 11/10/2019

WPP UK OPPORTUNITIES EQUITY TOTAL FUND NET OF FEES

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

ITD

Fund -19.32 -29.93 - -24.63

Index -14.99 -25.22 - -21.25

Index: MS UK IMI

NTAC:3NS-20

---

P
age 172



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP UK Opportunities Equity March 31, 2020

8  of  12  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Category: Total Fund Gross of Fees

Allocation over Time

31/12/2019 31/01/2020 29/02/2020 31/03/2020

Account / Group Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight Market Value Actual Weight

WPP UK Opportunities Equity 685,363,821 100.00 656,908,128 100.00 595,236,641 100.00 480,052,962 100.00

Collection Account 366,498 0.05 2,068,806 0.31 2,068,806 0.35 2,035,711 0.42

RI - Overlays 11,774,735 1.72 9,506,583 1.45 8,224,134 1.38 6,771,887 1.41

Top Account 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Transition account 3,004 0.00 3,004 0.00 3,587 0.00 3,587 0.00

W PP UK OPPS EQ RC 673,219,584 98.23 645,329,735 98.24 584,940,114 98.27 471,241,777 98.16

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 173



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP UK Opportunities Equity March 31, 2020

9  of  12  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Analysis: Regional CTR

Regional Performance
Base Rates of Return

Category

Ending
Market value

GBP - GOF
Ending
Weight

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

Inception
to Date

WPP UK Opportunities Equity 480,052,962 100.00 -19.28 -29.84 - -24.46

Total Fund - Foreign Exchange 480,055,004 100.00 -19.28 -29.83 - -24.45

Equity 467,460,067 97.38 -19.15 -29.73 - -24.41

Australia - - - - - -

Brazil - - - - - -

Canada 4,545,542 0.95 -8.12 -7.87 - 3.59

China - - - - - -

Denmark 224,872 0.05 -5.60 -32.43 - -

France 1,453,266 0.30 -5.93 -11.35 - -21.52

Germany 791,136 0.16 -20.13 -34.06 - -25.43

Guernsey 3,610,848 0.75 -13.82 -8.41 - -8.82

Hong Kong - - - - - -

India - - - - - -

Ireland 3,451,263 0.72 -19.02 -30.89 - -19.78

Italy 324,594 0.07 -23.42 -30.13 - -29.33

Japan - - - - - -

Netherlands 549,596 0.11 1.68 -13.66 - -25.09

Norway - - - - - -

Republic of Korea - - - - - -

Russian Federation - - - - - -

Singapore - - - - - -

South Africa 823,504 0.17 -41.51 -50.95 - -33.53

Spain 765,086 0.16 -54.41 -65.58 - -

Sweden - - - - - -

Switzerland 617,272 0.13 4.95 -3.73 - 1.58

Taiwan - - - - - -

United Kingdom 441,953,726 92.06 -19.18 -30.00 - -24.71

United States 8,349,362 1.74 -23.27 -29.96 - -25.05

Futures Offsets -3,324,945 -0.69 0.00 0.62 - 0.62

Cash & Short Term Deriv. 12,830,392 2.67 0.58 1.38 - 1.49

Pending Cash 3,089,490 0.64 11.80 4.77 - 4.24

Foreign Exchange -2,042 -0.00 - - - -

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 174



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP UK Opportunities Equity March 31, 2020

10  of  12  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services Analysis: Regional CTR

Base Rates of Return

Category

Ending
Market value

GBP - GOF
Ending
Weight

One
Month

Three
Months

One
Year

Inception
to Date

Other Assets - - - - - -

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 175



March 31, 2020

Appendix

S E C T I O N 2

Appendix

Investment Risk & Analytical Services

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 176



N O R T H E R N   T R U S T WPP UK Opportunities Equity March 31, 2020

12  of  12  |  Investment Risk & Analytical Services

Disclaimer(s)

The Global Industry Classification Standard ("GICS") was developed by and is the exclusive 
property and a service mark of Morgan Stanley Capital International Inc.("MSCI") and Standard & 
Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.("S&P") and is licensed for use by The 
Northern Trust Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Neither MSCI, S&P, nor any other 
party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any GICS classifications makes any express or 
implied warranties or representations with respect to such standard or classification (or the results 
to be obtained by the use thereof), and all such parties hereby expressly disclaim all warranties of 
originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose with respect 
to any of such standard or classification. Without limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall 
MSCI, S&P, any of their affiliates or any third party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any 
GICS classifications have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any 
other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the possibility of such damages. 

The Dow Jones Wilshire Indexes are calculated, distributed and marketed by Dow Jones & 
Company, Inc. pursuant to an agreement between Dow Jones and Wilshire and have been licensed 
for use. All content of the Dow Jones Wilshire Indexes © 2005 Dow Jones & Company, Inc. & 
Wilshire Associates Incorporated.

Standard and Poor's including its subsidiary corporations ("S&P") is a division of the McGraw-Hill 
Companies, Inc. Reproduction of S&P Index Alerts in any form is prohibited except with the prior 
written permission of S&P. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error by S&P 
sources, S&P or others, S&P does not guarantee the accuracy, adequacy, completeness or 
availability of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results 
obtained from the use of such information. S&P gives not express or implied warranties, including, 
but not limited to, any warranties or merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or use. In no 
event shall S&P be liable for any indirect, special or consequential damages in connection with 
subscriber's or others' use of S&P Index Alerts.

All MSCI equity characteristic results except for Dividend Yield, Price to Book Value, Price to Cash 
Earnings and Price Earnings Ratio were calculated by The Northern Trust Company.

FTSE ® is a trade mark of London Stock Exchange Plc and The Financial Times Limited and is 
used by FTSE under license. All rights in the FTSE Indices vest in FTSE and/or its licensors. 
Neither FTSE nor its licensors accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the FTSE Indices or 
underlying data.

The Merrill Lynch Indices are used with permission. Copyright 2007, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & 
Smith Incorporated. All rights reserved. The Merrill Lynch Indices may not be copied, used, or 
distributed without Merrill Lynch's prior written approval.

The Citi Index data is provided to you on an "AS IS" basis and you agree that use of the index data 
is at your sole risk. Citi Index makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, to you or 
any other person or entity, including without limitation any warranty of merchantability, originality, 
suitability or fitness for a particular purpose of the index data or any other matter and no warranty is 
given that the index data will conform to any description thereof or be free of omissions, errors, 
interruptions or defects. 4. In no event shall Citi Index be liable to you or any other person or entity 
for any direct, incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages (including, without limitation,

lost profits or revenues, loss of data, loss of use or claims of third parties), arising out of or in any 
manner in connection with your use of (or inability to use) the index data, whether or not you have 
been advised of, or otherwise might have anticipated the possibility of, such damages. Without 
limitation on the foregoing, you acknowledge that the index data may be incomplete or condensed, 
is for information purposes only and is not intended as, and shall not be construed to be, an offer or 
solicitation with respect to the purchase or sale of any security. All opinions and estimates provided 
constitute judgments as of their respective dates and are subject to change without notice. Such 
data, information, opinions and estimates are furnished as part of a general service, without regard 
to your particular circumstances, and Citi Index shall not be liable for any damages in connection 
therewith. Citi Index is not undertaking to manage money or act as a fiduciary with respect to your 
accounts or any of your managed or fiduciary accounts and you acknowledge and agree that the 
index data does not and shall not serve as the primary basis for any investment decisions made with 
respect to such accounts.

iShares® and BlackRock® are registered trademarks of BlackRock, Inc. and its affiliates 
("BlackRock") and are used under license. BlackRock has licensed certain trademarks and trade 
names of BlackRock to The Northern Trust Company. The Northern Trust Company's products and 
services are not sponsored, endorsed, sold, or promoted by BlackRock, and BlackRock makes no 
representations or warranties related to such products or services either to The Northern Trust 
Company or any other person or entity, including but not limited to the advisability of investing in the 
products of The Northern Trust Company. BlackRock has no obligation or liability in connection with 
the operation, marketing, trading or sale of the products or services from The Northern Trust 
Company.

Please note that this report has been prepared using best available data. This report may also 
contain information provided by third parties, derived by third parties or derived from third party data 
and/or data that may have been categorized or otherwise reported based upon client direction -
Northern Trust assumes no responsibility for the accuracy, timeliness or completeness of any such 
information. If you have questions regarding third party data or direction as it relates to this report, 
please contact your Northern Trust relationship team.

INVESTMENT ADVICE NOTICE:  The data and analysis contained in this report is for informational 
purposes only.  In providing the information contained herein, The Northern Trust Company is not 
undertaking to provide “investment advice” or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity for purposes of 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.  Nothing in this report is  
intended as, or should be understood as, a recommendation to hire, retain, or terminate an 
investment manager or engage in any purchase or sale transaction with  such a manager or any 
fund that it manages.  The Northern Trust Company and/or its affiliates may have business 
relationships with one or more investment managers or funds for included in this report, and may 
receive compensation for providing custody, administration, banking, brokerage, foreign exchange 
or other services to such investment managers or funds. The Northern Trust Company and its 
affiliates shall have no responsibility for the consequences of investment decisions made in reliance 
on information contained in this report.

NTAC:3NS-20

P
age 177



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 12TH MARCH 2020
	6 WPP 2019/20 ANNUAL RETURN
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	7 HOST AUTHORITY UPDATE
	Report

	8 WPP CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND PROCEDURE POLICY
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	9 WPP CLIMATE RISK POLICY
	Report

	10 WPP RISK POLICY & RISK REGISTER
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	11 OPERATOR UPDATE
	Report

	12 PERFORMANCE REPORTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2020
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	WPP Global Growth Fund
	WPP Global Growth Fund Summary
	Total Fund Gross of Fees
	Total Fund Net of Fees
	Asset Allocation Overview
	Asset Allocation over Time
	Regional Performance - Regional CTR

	Appendix
	Disclaimer(s)


	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4


